NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT
December 22, 2020
9:30 A.M.

The Commissioners Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular session
in the Commissioners Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown, Texas to
consider the following items:

Review and approval of minutes.

Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county.

Public Comment Period. The Commissioners Court will conduct a Public Comment Period to allow
members of the public to address the Court regarding matters pertaining to or affecting Williamson
County but that do not appear as an Agenda ltem on a meeting’s Agenda. During such Public
Comment Period, speakers shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes to make his/her remarks
and the maximum overall discussion time allowed for the Public Comment Period, regardless of the
number of members of the public wishing to address the Court during such period, shall be limited to
ten (10) minutes. Speaking time, to the extent possible, will be evenly allocated among speakers
should more than five (5) speakers desire to speak during the Public Comment Period. Please note
that the members of the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the
agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that
the court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.

(ltems 4-38)

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes,
position titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item
transfers.

Consider noting in the minutes the acceptance of County Commissioner Continuing
Education Certificate of Completion for Terry Cook and noting successful completion of
continuing education hours for 2020 as required in Section 81.0025 of the Local
Government Code.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to recognize completion of the required
continuing education hours for the Williamson County Tax Assessor Collector.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointing Thomas Nanninga and Jordan Baltazor to
the ESD #2 board of commissioners with the term to commence January 1, 2021 and continue until
December 31, 2022.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of George Hill to the
ESD #11 Board of Directors for a term beginning January 1, 2021, and ending on
December 31, 2022.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Jason Willis to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #11 for a term beginning January 1, 2021, and
ending on December 31, 2022.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Brian Brunson to
the Emergency Services District (ESD) #11 for a term beginning January 1, 2021, and
ending on December 31, 2022.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Feliza Conway to
the Emergency Services District (ESD) #12 for a two-year term beginning January 1,
2021, and ending on December 31, 2022.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Judy Lawler
Pokorny to the Emergency Services District (ESD) #12 Board of Directors for
a two-year term beginning January 1, 2021, and ending on December 31, 2022.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Erin Tanner to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #12 Board of Directors for a two-year term
beginning January 1, 2021, and ending on December 31, 2022.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a copier lease with
Sharp/TLC Office Systems for the Williamson County River Ranch, in the amount
$147.31 per month, pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR-CP0O-4433.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on correcting the effective date of the
lease with Sharp Electronics Corp. for one (1) Sharp MX-6071 digital copier for the
Williamson County Human Resources Department, in the amount of $239.21 per
month, pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR-CP0O-4433 previously approved on November
17, 2020 under agenda item #14 and effective date corrected on November 24, 2020,
under agenda item #12. The new effective date will be February 02, 2021.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an Agreement between
Williamson County and Lone Star Circle of Care in relation to the Wilco Forward Grant
Program that is funded through the CARES Act for response to the Coronavirus
Disease (COVID 19) pandemic thru December 30, 2020 and the remainder of the
contract to be funded thru the Tobacco Fund.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an Agreement between
Williamson County and First Baptist Church Georgetown in relation to the Wilco
Forward Grant Program that is funded through the CARES Act for response to the
Coronavirus Disease (COVID 19) pandemic.



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the proposal between
Williamson County and Doyle Electric, LLC for electrical services at the Williamson
County Animal Shelter, in the estimated amount of $4,707 and authorizing execution of
the proposal.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the agreement between
Williamson County and Pitney Bowes, Inc. for SendSuite Tracking and equipment in
the amount of $10,377.81 pursuant to BuyBoard contract #576-18, and authorizing
execution of the agreement.

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase for in-car
camera systems for new EMS vehicles from Ingram Technologies, LLC in the amount
of $59,881.74, per the terms of DIR Contract #DIR-TS0O-4025 and authorizing
execution of the quote.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Drug
Information Management System (DIMS) software from DataGain, for County Court at
Law #2, in the amount of $1,800.00 and authorizing execution of the associated
documents.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Drug
Information Management System (DIMS) software from DataGain for Juvenile
Services, in the amount of $1,800.00 and authorizing execution of the associated
documents.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the United Healthcare
Services, Inc., Amendment 4, effective January 1, 2021, for the same terms and
conditions as the existing contract, with the exception of items stated in the
Amendment No. 4, Financial Renewal and Terms.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on rejecting proposals submitted for
RFP #2246 Haz Mat Billing Software and authorize the Purchasing Agent to advertise
and receive sealed proposals under new RFP #T2721.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed proposals for Juvenile Justice Center RTU for Williamson
County under RFP #T2795. Funding Source: P533.

Receive and acknowledge approval of Change Order No. 10 from Prime Construction
for the River Ranch County Park Project in the amount of $-297.72 (CREDIT), which
was approved by Williamson County Facilities Director, Dale Butler, pursuant to the
Commissioners Court’s prior delegation of change order approval authority pursuant to
Loc. Gov’'t Code Sec. 262.031.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase from Knight
Security Systems, LLC to provide Video Surveillance System for Williamson County's
Inner Loop Annex in the amount of $10,574.60 per the terms of DIR Contract
#DIR-CPO-4494.



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving Work Authorization No. 1 for the Jail
Magistrate Court, Elevator 9, and Chiller 4 (P540) in the amount of $298,000.00 to expire on June 22,
2022, under Williamson County First Amended and Restated Agreement for Architectural and
Engineering Services between Williamson County and Talex Inc, Engineers dated November 24, 2020.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2019 CIP transfer to
move $71,230.99 P541 (Jail-Add'l Elevator-North Side) and $117,515.02 P542 (Jail
Additional Chiller) to P540 (Jail Renovations Phase II).

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2020 CIP transfer to
move $428,769.01 from P541 (Jail-Add'l Elevator-North Side) to P540 (Jail
Renovations Phase II).

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2021 CIP transfer to
move $600,000.00 from P545 (Pretrial (CJC Temp Office)) to P515 (Justice Center
Remodel).

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving a 2018 CIP transfer to
move $182,484.98 P542 (Jail Additional Chiller) to P540 (Jail Renovations Phase ).

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on accepting the corrected spreadsheet
for Statewide Materials Transport Ltd for IFB T2080, awarded on the 12.08.2020
agenda, item number 33.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No 1 to contract
number IFB T749, in the amount of -$32,379.06 for Chandler Road Milling, Sealing and
Overlay from SH 130 to FM 1660. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.003599.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on Change Order No 1, to contract
number IFB T1498, in the amount of $67,610.00 for the Shell Road and Shell Spur
Milling, Sealing and Overlay Project. Funding source: 01.0200.0210.003599.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Purchasing Agent to
advertise and receive sealed bids for Portland Cement under IFB #T2791.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #72164 Crushed
Granite Base to the lowest and best offer, Statewide Materials Transport, LTD as the
primary vendor.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Williamson County Landfill
Annual Report for fiscal year 09/01/2019 through 08/31/2020 for Waste Management.

REGULAR AGENDA



39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

50.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on recognizing Jay Schade, Senior
Director of Williamson County Technology Services, on his retirement after 20 years of
service to the County.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on funding matters relating to
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act to include, but not be
limited to hearing an update on the Wilco Forward grant program, setting budget
priorities in relation to remaining CARES Act funds and possible future funding and
allocation plans in relation to CARES Act funds.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the renewal of BLS and
ALS affiliation agreement between Williamson County EMS and Temple College.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the contract between
Texas Health and Human Services Commission and Williamson County related to the
funding for Opioid Emergency Response Pilot Project as administered by Williamson
County Mobile Outreach Team.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action to re-appoint John Pelczar, Director of
Operations, for Juvenile Services to the Williamson County Benefits Committee as
recommended by the Benefits Committee.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the County Judge to
execute the required Williamson County Cafeteria #125 Plan documents; Williamson
County Formal Record of Action and the Williamson County Adoption
Agreement-Cafeteria Plan as prepared by Premier Pension Solutions.

10:00am Public Hearing - Conduct a public hearing to move $171,618.81 from Dept.
572 Adult Probation to Dept. 591 Pre Trial to fund four new positions.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on creating four new positions in Pre
Trial Services with funding previously approved in the FY21 Budget.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on exempting Satellite Tracking of
People, LLC from competitive bidding requirements per Texas Local Government Code
§262.024(a)(7)(2) to preserve or protect the public health and safety of residents of the
county and authorizing execution of the agreement.

Receive updates on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on awarding RFQ #T1853 Corridor E
Planning to the overall most qualified respondents BGE, Inc and Halff Associates and
authorizing execution of the agreements.

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding IFB #T72526 Striping to the
lowest and best bidder, DIJ Construction, Inc.



51.

52.

53.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a real estate contract with Sylvia
Rivera for right of way needed on the SE Loop project (Parcel 11). Funding Source:
Road BOnds P463

Dliscuss, consider and take appropriate action on a claim for fixed moving expense on
Parcel 12 (Miller).

EXECUTIVE SESSION

"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this meeting
to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations regarding
Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic
Development Negotiations)."

Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.072 Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with third person.)
A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties

Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of
property owned by third parties

a) Discuss the acquisition of real property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop.

b) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 176 at RM 2243

c) Discuss the acquisition of real property: O'Connor Signal Project

d) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 278

e) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.

f)  Discuss the acquisition of real property for Seward Junction SE and SW Loop.

g) Discuss the acquisition of real property for SH 29 @ DB Wood.

h) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 366.

i) Discuss the acquisition of real property for N. Mays.

j) Discuss Somerset Road Districts No. 3 & 4 reimbursements for acquisition &
construction of Reagan Blvd.

k) Discuss the acquisition of real property for CR 111.

[) Discuss the acquisition of real property for Corridor H

m) Discuss the acquisition of real property for future SH 29 corridor.

n) Discuss the acquisition of real property for the expansion of Ronald Reagan at

o) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor C.

p) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor F.

gq) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Corridor D.

r) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for SE Loop/Corridor A.

s) Discuss the acquisition of right-of-way for Reagan extension.

t) Discuss the acquisition of right of way for the Great Oaks Bridge Project.

u) Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Brushy Creek Trail Project.

v) Discuss the acquisition of real property in conjunction with WCCF for potential
parkland/bird habitat.

x) Discuss the acquisition of drainage/detention easements for real property North



54.

55.

of WMCO Juvenile Detention Center

y) Discuss the acquisition of the MKT Right of Way

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County

Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property
owned by the County

a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and
interests.

b) Potential governmental uses for 8th Street downtown parking lot

c) Discuss possible uses of property owned by Williamson County on Main St.
between 3rd and 4th Streets. (formerly occupied by WCCHD)

d) Discuss property usage at Longhorn Junction

e) Discuss sale of excess 183A right of way to abutting property owner.

f)  Discuss the sale of excess ROW at San Gabriel Parkway and Mel Mathis Ave.

g) Discuss Blue Springs Boulevard

h) Discuss county owned property located at Ed Schmidt Boulevard Hutto, Texas
C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman.
D. Discuss the possible placement of agricultural-related monuments at the
Williamson County Exposition Center with the participation of third parties.
E. Discuss the Williamson County Reimbursement Agreement for Construction of San
Gabriel Blvd. and New Hope Road with the City of Leander and TIRZ #1

Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas
Government Code, Section 551.087:

a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.

b) Wolf Lakes

c) Flint Hill Resources-Taylor Fuel Storage Terminal on CR 366

d) Project Deliver

e) Project Advantage

f)  Project Cedar

g) Project Expansion

h) Project Arcos

i) Project Woods

j)  Project Co-Op

k) Project Liberty

[) Project Long Haul

m) Project Bon Jovi

n) Project Crystal

Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential
attorney-client legal matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec.
551.071 consultation with attorney.), including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County

b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;

c) Employee/personnel related matters

d) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.



e) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. David Bernhardt, et al., In the
Western District Court, Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

f) Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

g) Cause No. 18-0903-C425/Court of Appeals Number: 01-19-00025-CV; Dee
Hobbs, Williamson County Attorney v. Bill Gravell, Jr., Williamson County Judge, and
Terry Cook, Cynthia Long, Valerie Covey and Russ Boles, County Commissioners;
In the 425th District Court of Williamson County, Texas

h) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.

i) Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.

j) Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division

k) D-1-GN-19-005511; Brian Johns v. Williamson County, Texas; In the 53rd
Judicial District Court of Travis County, Texas

[) Civil Action No. 1:19-CV-1163; Amanda McCoy v. Williamson County, Texas et
al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.

m) Claim of Regina Wright.

n) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.

0) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

p) Cause No. 20-0752-C26; County of Williamson, by and through the Williamson
County Commissioners Court v. Robert Chody, Individually and in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of Williamson County; In the 26th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.

q) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
r) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.

s) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.; In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

t) Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.

u) Cause No. 20-1213-C368; Michael Klier v. Williamson County; In the 368th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas.

v) Legal matters relating to Bailey Park Subdivision, Jarrell, Texas.

w) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).

x) Claim of the Estate of Okey Floyd Jones, Sr.

y) Claim, of Ramsey Mitchell.

z) Cause No. 20-1151-C395; Sarah Ackman v. Williamson County; In the 395th
District Court of Williamson County Texas.

aa) Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an amendment to the Release
and Indemnity Agreement executed by Terry Ballard on December 10, 2018.



56.

57.

58.

59.

Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties,
discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors, employees
and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting deliberation and discussion
pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials (Executive
Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 — Personnel Matters).

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning economic development.
Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation,
settlement matters and other legal matters, including the following:

a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the
County

b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;

c) Employee/personnel related matters

d) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters
related to county defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body within the attorney/client relationship clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

e) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. David Bernhardt, et al., In the
Western District Court, Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

f) Civil Action No. 1:18-CV-49, Troy Mansfield v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

g) Cause No. 18-0903-C425/Court of Appeals Number: 01-19-00025-CV; Dee
Hobbs, Williamson County Attorney v. Bill Gravell, Jr., Williamson County Judge, and
Terry Cook, Cynthia Long, Valerie Covey and Russ Boles, County Commissioners;
In the 425th District Court of Williamson County, Texas

h) Cause No. 19-0850-C368; County of Williamson vs. Purdue Pharma, LP et al., In
the District Court of Williamson County, Texas.

i) Civil Action No. 1:17-cv-01114-LY, Elizabeth Saucedo and Tettus Davis v.
Jonathon Hodgkiss, In The United States District Court for the Western District of
Texas, Austin Division.

j) Cause No. 1:18-CV-0198; Officer Mary Teague v. Williamson County, Travis
County and City of Giddings, In the United States District Court for the Western
District of Texas, Austin Division

k) D-1-GN-19-005511; Brian Johns v. Williamson County, Texas; In the 53rd
Judicial District Court of Travis County, Texas

1) Civil Action No. 1:19-CV-1163; Amanda McCoy v. Williamson County, Texas et
al., In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas Austin
Division.

m) Claim of Regina Wright.

n) Cause No. 19-0406-C368; Anthony Garcia and Victoria Garcia et al. v. Stephen
Wade Freeman et al. v. Wayne Finch et al.; In the 368th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.

0) Case: 1:20-CV-255-LY; Jay Kreper v. Williamson County et al.; In the United



States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

p) Cause No. 20-0752-C26; County of Williamson, by and through the Williamson
County Commissioners Court v. Robert Chody, Individually and in his Official
Capacity as Sheriff of Williamson County; In the 26th District Court of Williamson
County, Texas.

q) Case Number 1:20-cv-01068-LY; Javier Ambler, Sr., et al. v. Williamson County, Texas,
In the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.
r) Case 1:20-cv-00927-LY; Heather Vargas v. Williamson County, Texas; In The
United States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.

s) Case No. 1:20-CV-00842; SonWest Co. v. J. TERRON EVERSTON, in his official
capacity as Williamson County Engineer, et al.; In the United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division.

t) Civil Action No. 1:20-cv-836; Elizabeth Firey v. Williamson County, In The United
States District Court for the Western District Of Texas Austin Division.

u) Cause No. 20-1213-C368; Michael Klier v. Williamson County; In the 368th
Judicial District Court of Williamson County, Texas.

v) Legal matters relating to Bailey Park Subdivision, Jarrell, Texas.

w) Potential legal claims, demands and/or litigation against The Travelers Indemnity
Company (Travelers).

x) Claim of the Estate of Okey Floyd Jones, Sr.

y) Claim, of Ramsey Mitchell.

z) Cause No. 20-1151-C395; Sarah Ackman v. Williamson County; In the 395th
District Court of Williamson County Texas.

aa) Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an amendment to the Release
and Indemnity Agreement executed by Terry Ballard on December 10, 2018.

60. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or
employees, including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews
of department heads and appointed officials.

61. Comments from Commissioners.

Bill Gravell, Jr., County Judge

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson
County Courthouse, a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the 18th day
of December 2020 at 5:00 PM and remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding
the scheduled time of said meeting.



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 4.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

Compensation ltems

Submitted By: Kayla Marek, Human Resources

Department: Human Resources

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving compensation changes, position
titles changes, position grade changes and any corresponding line item transfers.

Background
See attached documentation for details.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount

Attachments
Position Changes

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Human Resources (Originator) Rebecca Clemons 12/17/2020 08:35 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:40 AM

Form Started By: Kayla Marek Started On: 12/17/2020 07:51 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Current *New Earliest

Department Current *New Position Position Reduction [Increase to Oracle
Number and Annual Annual Budget Budget to Position |Position Effective
Name PCN EEID Salary Salary Amount Amount Budget Budget Change notes Date

Title and Grade Change only:Reclass

from Switchboard Operator (B.14) to

Senior Administrative Specialist
0475-County (B.18) to reflect increased volume
Attorney 0961 Vacant N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A and complexity of duties. 12/25/2020
560 - Sheriff's Reallocation of position funds from
Office 1350 N/A N/A N/A $57,715.74 $56,584.23 $1,131.51 PCN 1350 to PCN 1269 12/25/2020

Reallocation of position funds from
560 - Sheriff's PCN 1350 to accommodate step
Office 1269 14854 $56,584.23 |$57,715.74 |$56,584.23  |$57,715.74 $1,131.51 [increase to L1.5 12/25/2020

*Amount may vary slightly due to Oracle rounding




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 5.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
Commissioner Cook's CEU hours for 2020

Submitted For:  Terry Cook Submitted By: Garry Brown,
Commissioner
Pct. #1
Department: Commissioner Pct. #1

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Consider noting in the minutes the acceptance of County Commissioner Continuing Education
Certificate of Completion for Terry Cook and noting successful completion of continuing
education hours for 2020 as required in Section 81.0025 of the Local Government Code.

Background
Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |
Attachments

Certificate
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/11/2020 07:47 AM

Form Started By: Garry Brown Started On: 12/10/2020 03:59 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/11/2020



JUSWIUIBAON)
\AHC DOU JJJJJ

00T ‘€1-11 Menigay \ up )
Joapmgysur
DNNOA DA _:_,tu_.
DIAIDS UOISUSIXT A UDY WY sexaL SEXa] JO UONEBIDOSSY SJauoissiliwo) 7 sabpnr Aunod JUaWUIBA0Y AJUno) Jo a1nuisul Buno ‘oA |N
10311 “T'Yd "IPAH 3 1UBpIS3ld ‘I3[1EIS X}INYD 10193110 “Q'Ud “IINDOW T 4339

X1 ‘uoiyeys abajjo)

S}NO0) siouoissiuiuio) bcscu 10] joOYdS 0Z0C

Buiuies] [euoijedonpd Jo sinoH 0091 bunajdwo)) Ajjnjssaidng Jo4

j00) Ad|

O] 91edyi}ia) siy | spiemy
JUSWIUISAO0L) AJUNO)) Jo 33NIsU| BUNoj "H°A 3yl

uonajdwo) jo 33edyi}id)

NOISN3.LX3
A41TID

WRYV SVXAL




PLEASE SUBMIT THIS COPY TO A TAC REPRESENTATIVE.

TEXAS ASSOCIATION of COUNTIES
Certification for Continuing Education
2020 Legislative Conference
Aug. 26-28, 2020 | Virtual

Sponsor: Educational Co-Sponsor:
Texas Association of Counties V.G. Young Institute of County Government, Texas A&M
AgriLife Extension Service
CREDIT
SESSION TITLE DATE TIME 0};(13;{1:38]) HOURS
: : CLAIMED
Exclusive Meeting: Core Legislative Group I Wed,Aug.26 | 12pm. | tlhour |
Opening General Session | Wed.,, Aug. 26 | 2-4 p.m. | 2hours | i
‘ Legislative Discussion Session- 4:10-5:15 p.m. A MAXIMUM OF 1 HOUR IS ALLOWED.
COVID-19 and the Texas Healthcare System | Wed, Aug.26 |  410-5:15pm. | Thour | [
|COVID-19 Grant Resources Roundtable l Wed., Aug. 26 | 4:10-5:15 p.m. f 1 hour |
} Legislative Discussion Session - 8:30-9:35 a.m. A MAXIMUM OF 1 HOUR IS ALLOWED. :
TAC's Federal Outreach Initiative S | Thurs., Aug. 27 8:30-9:35 a.m. 1 1 hour _l o
Behavioral Health during a (;risis: Taking Care of Thurs,, Aug, 27 8:30-9:35 am. 1 hour
Yourself and Your Community
i Legislative Discussion Session - 9:55-11 a.m. A MAXIMUM OF 1 HOUR IS ALLOWED.
Senate Bill 2 | Thurs., Aug. 27 9:55-11 a.m. . lhour | /
Law Enforcement Response to COVID-19 | Thurs,, Aug. 27 9:55-11 a.m. | 1lhour |
% Legislative Discussions Session — 11:20 a.m.-12:25 p.m. A MAXIMUM OF 1 HOUR IS ALLOWED.
Gearing Up For The November 2020 Election | Thurs,, Aug.27 | 11:20a.m.-12:225p.m.| Thour | -
The 2020 Census and Redlstrlctmg in a COVID-19 i Thurs,, Aug. 27 | 1120 a.m.-12:25 p.m. 1 hour l {
World |
|County Association Meetings | Thurs., Aug. 27 1:30-3:30 p.m. 2 hours | Q:
1 Legislative Discussion Session - 8:30-9:35 a.m. A MAXIMUM OF 1 HOUR IS ALLOWED.
'Emergency Management: What Should I Know Today? ’ Fri,, Aug. 28 } 8:30-9:35 am. 1 hour 1 \
\
Court Systems Movmg Into the Futgﬁre 7 ' Fri., Aug. 28 8:30-9:35 a.m. 1 Thour | | |
IClosmg General Session | Fri,, Aug.28 | 945-11:15am. | 1.50hours | [ o
TOTAL POSSIBLE CONTINUING EDUCATION HOURS — 1150 — [/ ,"3
TOTAL HOURS CLAIMED
Please check and fill out the office and contmulng education hours that apply to you:
o County Commissioner (max of 11:5 hours): 0.5 o County Treasurer & Staff (max of 11.50 hours):
o CPA/Auditors (max of 11.50 hours): o Tax Assessor-Collectors (max of 11.50 hours):
o Purchasing Agents (max of 11.50 hours): o PHRs and SPHRs (max of 11.50 hours): /1 /
O Justices of the Peace (max of 11.50 hours): ﬁ:ﬂ o) / // SLL (&) (} //] j V%, Z/ O3 :Ql ;Q ‘ ,y”
I _\ /44 {/f’/( Cl/’ 7 Z/ , do hereby certify that I attended the above listed programs and was present at

the courses of(lr{structlon I represent and declare all of the above statements are true and correct.

Name (print): //, 1Y (’f . («j)(/

T

) ~Y ’ . o
) ~ SN~ = . vl a 217 /Y] ) e/ ISV
County: (/ i / //(,(’; ,/ /’//f; 7 / Title: ( (,’f//// /// eL > (D) /zf,/ /
S/ Ny Bl V. . . fip S AT // / //,/
Date: [0 ~/() LI L Signature: | /4 A1 [ K
— =~ -

(/



COUNTY JUDGES AND COMMISSIONERS

ASSOCIATION OF TEXAS

County Commissioner Continuing Education Transcript

Reporting Period: 1/1/2019 - 12/31/2019

Hon. Terry Cook ID:
Commissioner 244164
Williamson County Term:

1801 E Old Settlers Blvd Ste 110 1/1/2018 - 12/31/2019

Round Rock, TX 78664-1908
Phone: (512) 244-8610
Fax: (512) 244-8616

Date Description

1/1/2019 Excess hours carried from 2018

1/11/2019 Urban Counties Education & Policy Conference

6/5/2019 2019 Conference of the County Investment Academy
9/6/2019 2019 Legislative Conference

11/6/2019 District 8 County Judges & Commissioners Court Conference

Total Hours Earned: 50.75

You have met your 2019 Commissioner Statutory Continuing Education requirement.

You will carry forward 8.00 hours to the next reporting period.

See Statute: Section 81.0025 Continuing Education, Local Government Code

Earned Hours

8.00
11.50
15.00

9.50

6.75

Because continuing education sponsors are not required by law to report attendance to the Association, this transcript may

not be a complete list of continuing education hours earned by the commissioner for this calendar year.

Print Date: 2/5/2020 If this report does not agree with your records, please call Administrative
Assistant at (512) 482-0701 or (800) 733-0699 or cjca@allison-bass.com



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 6.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
Recognize completion of required continuing education hours for the Tax Assessor Collector

Submitted For:  Larry Gaddes Submitted By: Judy Kocian, County Tax
Assessor Collector

Department: County Tax Assessor Collector
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action to recognize completion of the required
continuing education hours for the Williamson County Tax Assessor Collector.

Background

Pursuant to Section 6.231(d) which requires the Tax Assessor/Collector to file annually a
continuing education certificate of completion with the Commissioners' Court of the county in
which the county Assessor/Collector holds office.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
CEU transcript

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/11/2020 10:21 AM

Tax Assessor (Originator) Judy Kocian 12/11/2020 11:19 AM

Form Started By: Judy Kocian Started On: 12/11/2020 09:42 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/11/2020



TAX ASSESSOR-COLLECTOR
CONTINUING EDUCATION TRANSCRIPT

Reporting Period: 1/2/2020 - 1/1/2021

Hon. Larry Gaddes ID: 231060
Tax Assessor-Collector Phone: (512) 943-1954
Williamson County Fax: (612) 943-3263
904 S Main St Enrolled Date: 01/02/2017

Georgetown, TX 78626-5829

Date Description Earned Hours
01/02/2020 Excess hours carried from 2020 10.00
01/13/2020 TAC Cybersecurity Responsible for Social Media 0.25
02/26/2020 Safe Computing 0.25
03/10/2020 New Resident Tax, Even Trade Transfer Tax, Gift 1.00
Tax and Military Personnel

06/05/2020 Truth-in-Taxation (TNT) Webinar 2.00
08/28/2020 TAC Legislative Conference 6.00
11/12/2020 2020 VG Young School for Tax Assessor-Collectors 11.00

Total Hours for Year: 30.50

You have met your education requirements for the period 01/02/2020 - 01/01/2021.

You may carry forward to the next reporting period 10.00 hours.

Texas Property Tax Code § 6.231
(a) A county assessor-collector must successfully complete 20 hours of continuing education before each anniversary of

the date on which the county assessor-collector takes office. The continuing education must include at least 10 hours of
instruction on laws relating to the assessment and collection of property taxes for a county assessor-collector who
assesses or collects property taxes.

(d) A county assessor-collector shall file annually a continuing education certificate of completion with the
commissioners’ court of the county in which the county assessor-collector holds office.

Print Date: 12/04/2020 For questions regarding CE hours, please contact the TACA Education
Director at education@tacaoftexas.org.




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 7.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
Reappoint Thomas Nanninga and Jordan Baltazor to ESD 2

Submitted For:  Terry Cook Submitted By: Garry Brown,
Commissioner
Pct. #1
Department: Commissioner Pct. #1

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointing Thomas Nanninga and Jordan Baltazor to the ESD
#2 board of commissioners with the term to commence January 1, 2021 and continue until December 31, 2022.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
Baltazor resume
Nanninga bio

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/16/2020 03:02 PM
Form Started By: Garry Brown Started On: 12/16/2020 02:13 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/16/2020



Jordan Baltazor

Experience
Kasasa — Austin, TX Apr 2011 - Current
® VP, Product Strategy Jan 2019 - Current

o Developed subject matter expertise, pricing strategy, marketing strategy, and launch
execution on new-to-market loan product.

o0 Achieved cross-functional alighment to support updated strategy on relaunching a
previously failed product achieving 1000%+ increase in originated loans and balances in
under 4 months.

o Created playbook for new and existing sales teams resulting in new sales lead generation
while creating raving fans and referenceable client experiences.

® VP, Executive Client Success Manager . Jan 2013 - Current

o Advise with ‘C’ level teams at banking institutions across the country with actionable
consumer deposit acquisition and retention strategies to support financial institution
growth goals & profitability objectives.

o Plén, create, and execute strategies engineered with marketing data, analytics, and market
testing to drive new account holders, products per household, deposits, and profitability
for institutions across the United States ranging from $100M to $15B in assets.

o Create new implementation and post launch support/consulting strategies for new asset
product with Tiger Team of individuals from across the organization.

e VP, Senior Regional Director Jan 2017 - Nov 2017

o Successfully served as a temporary sales rep in the Southeastern United States while Sales
team was reorganized from the ground up.

o Exceeded previous record pace for new sales as a rookie while developing strong referral
and reference network for future sales team.

® Technical Account Manager Apr 2011 - Dec 2012

o Facilitated user acceptance testing by three hundred internal and external beta test users for
new nationally available financial services product.

0 Assisted in developing personal financial management tool available to hundreds of

community financial institutions’ customers by providing defect guidance and new feature
enhancements




Premier Bank - Olathe, KS Nov 2010 — Apr 2011

® Cash Management Officer

Farmers Bank of Kansas City — Overland Park, KS Jun 2010 - Nov 2010

® Retail Operations / Customer Service

Sunflower Bank, N.A. — Salina, KS Sep 2003 - Jun 2010
¢  Online Application Specialist Jan 2010 - Jun 2010

o Managed development projects including retail & business Internet banking, mobile
banking, online account opening, and other cash services processing over $750 million
annually.

o Cultivated lasting vendor reIatiohships, focused on collaborative value for customers
and shareholders alike. ' '

o Provided internal and external customer service for bank and non-bank offered products
and services,

®  Retail Support Manager Jul 2007 - Jan 2010

o Directed third-party vendor relationships including Internet Banking, Armored Car Services,
Merchant Card Processing, and Check Provider. In total, all contracts under management
exceed $2 million per year. Total transaction value of relationships exceeds $1 billion annually.

o Designed products and services while serving on Product Development Committee. Co-
Chair Internet Banking task force charged with revolutionizing customer’s online
experience.

o Managed internal support department that provided direct support to 500 internal
employees and external treasury management customers.

® Branch Support Specialist - Trainer Jan 2007-July 2007

® Teller Supervisor Apr 2005-Jan 2007

® Customer Service Representative/Security Coordinator ' Jun 2004-Apr 2005

® Teller Sep 2003-Jun 2004
Education

Kansas Wesleyan University, Salina, KS - M.B.A., Business Management
Friends University, Wichita, KS - B.S., Organizational Management & Leadership
Dodge City Community College, Dodge City, KS - Associate of Art




Thomas Nanninga is currently President of Williamson County Emergency Service
District. Thom was sworn in on January 7, 2011, since that time he has served at all
positions except Treasurer. In an earlier career Mr. Nanninga retired from 21 years
service as a Captain with Houston Fire Department.

As president, WilCo ESD #2 has created Long and Short Term goals for vehicles, as
well as facilities maintenance. During this time the district has also established an
investment plan to strategically manage their tax income, which is realized annually.
WilCo ESD#2 is small unincorporated area of approximately 12 square miles from south
of RR620 to FM 1431, surrounded by Cities of Round Rock, Austin and Cedar Park.
The district will soon open Station #3, near Great Oaks and Sam Bass Rd. while
revealing Engine#3.

In addition to his position locally, Mr Nanninga has been a board member of State
Association of Fire and Emergency Districts, (SAFE-D), since 2013. He is currently
holding position of Membership Chair and Legislation team member.



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 8.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
ESD 11 Board

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of George Hill to the ESD #11
Board of Directors for a term beginning January 1, 2021, and ending on December 31, 2022.

Background

This is a reappointment to the ESD #11 Board of Directors, where Mr. Hill serves as the
Secretary for the Board.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:31 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 12/17/2020 07:13 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 9.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
ESD 11 Board Appointment

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Jason Willis to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #11 for a term beginning January 1, 2021, and ending on
December 31, 2022.

Background

This is a reappointment to the ESD #11 Board of Directors, where Jason serves as the
President of the Board of Directors.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:31 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 12/17/2020 07:18 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 10.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
ESD 11 Board of Directors

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Brian Brunson to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #11 for a term beginning January 1, 2021, and ending on
December 31, 2022.

Background

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:32 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 12/17/2020 07:23 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 1.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
ESD 12 Board Appointment

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Feliza Conway to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #12 for a two-year term beginning January 1, 2021, and
ending on December 31, 2022.

Background

This is a reappointment to the ESD #12 Board of Directors, where Ms. Conway has served one
full term as a Director.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:32 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 12/17/2020 07:26 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 12.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
ESD 12 Board Appointment

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Judy Lawler Pokorny to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #12 Board of Directors for a two-year term beginning
January 1, 2021, and ending on December 31, 2022.

Background

This is a reappointment to the ESD #12 Board of Directors, where Ms. Pokorny serves as the
Treasurer for the Board.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:34 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 12/17/2020 07:29 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 13.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
ESD 12 Board Appointment

Submitted For:  Cynthia Long Submitted By: Kathy Pierce,
Commissioner
Pct. #2
Department: Commissioner Pct. #2

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on reappointment of Erin Tanner to the
Emergency Services District (ESD) #12 Board of Directors for a two-year term beginning
January 1, 2021, and ending on December 31, 2022.

Background

This is a reappointment of Ms. Tanner to the ESD #12 Board of Directors, where she serves as
the Assistant Treasurer for the Board.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 08:34 AM
Form Started By: Kathy Pierce Started On: 12/17/2020 07:32 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 14.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
TLC Office System River Ranch Printer Lease

Submitted For: Randy Barker Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,
Purchasing

Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving a copier lease with Sharp/TLC
Office Systems for the Williamson County River Ranch, in the amount $147.31 per month,
pursuant to DIR Contract #DIR-CP0O-4433.

Background

Approval of this lease will support the operations of the Williamson County River Ranch. New
lease term is for 36 months, lease effective 12/22/2020. The copier is priced at $147.31 per
month, includes 3,500 black and white copies in the amount of $.0084 and 500 color copies in
the amount of $.05. The current contract expires at the end of November. Point of contact will
be Alejandra Urista. The expenditure will be charged to 01.0100.3107.004621.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount
Attachments

quote
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 10:46 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:08 AM

Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 12/15/2020 10:24 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Deliver to- Williamson County River Ranch
194 Reveille Way Liberty Hill, TX 78642

December 15th, 2020

TLC Customized Solution

DIR-CPO-4433

Recommended Equipment

013%
1

Model

Sharp 3051
30 PPM Color Printer/Copier/Color
Scanner

e 10.1-inch touchscreen

* 100-sheet reversing document
feeder

* PCL & Postscript

e Color Consistency feature

* End-of-lease Security

* Scans 80 ipm

New Solution Pricing

Monthly Total- Includes 3,500 B/W & 500 Color

36 MONTH Lease +
Maintenance TOTAL

B&W RATE

PROFESSIONAL COLOR
*Qverages are the same rate
*does not include paper

$147.31

Shay Mata|Cell: 512-731-0561
smata@tlcofficesystems.com
Sr. Account Executive

\_\/‘

o e —

Service & Supply Agreement includes
all Parts, Labor, Travel and Supplies
(excluding paper & staples)

4-Hour Response Time Guarantee

Loaner/Replacement Program

Automated Reporting of Meters,
Toner Orders and Error Codes

* Delivery, Installation and Training are Included

"@ TLC Office Systems

The Leader’s Choi



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 15.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
Sharp Copier for Human Resources

Submitted For: Randy Barker Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,
Purchasing

Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on correcting the effective date of the lease with
Sharp Electronics Corp. for one (1) Sharp MX-6071 digital copier for the Williamson County
Human Resources Department, in the amount of $239.21 per month, pursuant to DIR Contract
#DIR-CPO-4433 previously approved on November 17, 2020 under agenda item #14 and
effective date corrected on November 24, 2020, under agenda item #12. The new effective
date will be February 02, 2021.

Background

Approval of this lease will support the operations of the Williamson County Human Resources
office. New lease term is 60 months effective 2/1/2021. Includes 1 machine at $239.21 per
month; overages on 5,000 black copies will be billed at $0.008 each and 1,000 color copies will
be billed $0.050 each. Lease includes delivery, installation, training, parts, labor, toner and
staples. The expenditure will be charged 50/50 between 01.0885.0886.004621

and 01.0100.0402.004621. Department contact is Malea Schmitt.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount
Attachments

quote
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 11:42 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:47 AM

Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 12/15/2020 01:42 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



SHARP ELECTRONICS CORPORATION
STATE OF TEXAS DIR-CPO-4433 QUOTE

Vendor Name:

SHARP Electronics Corp.; C/O SHARP Business Systems

Date: |12/08/20

Address:

100 Paragon Drive Box Q

Quote No: WCTAC

City, State Zip

Montvale, NJ 07645

Customer Name/lnvoice Address:

Delivery Address:

Williamson County Human Resources

Williamson County Human Resources

100 Wilco Way HR101

100 Wilco Way H

R101

Georgetown, TX 78626

Georgetown, TX

78626

Contact Name

Malea Schmitt

Phone:

E-Mail: | Malea.Schmitt@wilco.org

SHARP Business Systems, M.D. Leonard

Quoting SBS Office:

Austin, Texas 78758 512-835-1000 MDL

SHARP Business Systems, 2600 Longhorn Blvd., Ste 102

Dealer Authorized Signa

tWe«Wﬁ

w/'o?/w

Installing Sharp Dealer:

Austin, Texas 78758 512-835-1000 MDL

SHARP Business Systems, 2600 Longhorn Blvd., Ste 102

Item

Description

QTY Price/ Mo.

Total/ Mo.

MX-FN27N, Inner Finisher

Sharp MX-6071, 60ppm Networked Color Digital Copier
w/ 150 Sheet Single pass Doc. Feed. and one 550 sheet paper drawer

MX-DE26N, Stand w/ two 550 Sheet paper Drawers (3 total)

1 $239.21

$239.21

Includes Full Service:

5,000 BLK Copies/Prints per month; Overages @ $0.008 ea.

1,000 CLR Copies/Prints per month; Overages @ $0.050 ea.

Includes:

Delivery, Installation, Training,
Parts, Labor, Toner, and Staples.

State of Texas DIR 60 Month Lease

Monthly Total

$239.21




T

JampLe PO

VENDOR :

SHARP ELECTRONICS CORPORATION
C/O SHARP BUSINESS SYSTEMS
100 PARAGON DRIVE BOX Q
MONTVALE, NJ 07495

REQUESTED BY: SCHMIDT, MALEA
512.943.1525

Description

SHARP MX-6071, MX-DE26N,

MX-FN27N

$239.21 PER MO.

FROM 03/01/21 THRU 09/30/21

SERVICE FOR 6,000 BLK COPIES/MO.
AND 1,000 CLR COPIES/MO.

BLK OVERAGES @ $0.0080 EA.
CLR OVERAGES @ $0.0500 EA.

NOTES TO SUPPLIER:

60 MONTH DIR-CPO-4433 LEASE

AUTHORIZED BY:

P.O. NUMBER:

DATE:

SHIP TO:
WILLIAMSON COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
100 WILCO WAY

GEORGETOWN, TX 78626

BILL TO:

WILLTAMSON COUNTY HUMAN RESOURCES
100 WILCO WAY

GEORGETOWN, TX 78626

Per Amount
239.21 1,674.47
Total 1,674.47



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 16.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

Lone Star Circle of Care Cares Agreement

Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor

Department: County Auditor

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an Agreement between Williamson
County and Lone Star Circle of Care in relation to the Wilco Forward Grant Program that is

funded through the CARES Act for response to the Coronavirus Disease (COVID 19) pandemic
thru December 30, 2020 and the remainder of the contract to be funded thru the Tobacco Fund.

Background

The Court approved funding for Lone Star Circle of Care on December 8, 2020. $424,145 will
be funded through CARES Funds. Up to $512,514 will be funded through Tobacco Funds over
the next 3 years.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount

Attachments
Lone Star Circle of Care CARES Agreement

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:43 AM

County Auditor (Originator) Julie Kiley 12/17/2020 11:46 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:48 AM

Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 12/17/2020 11:18 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



WILLIAMSON COUNTY
SOCIAL SERVICE
FUNDING AGREEMENT
WITH
LONE STAR CIRCLE OF CARE

This Social Service Funding Agreement (“the Agreement”), is made by and between
Williamson County, Texas (the “County”) located at 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas 78626,
and the Lone Star Circle of Care (the “Agency”), a non-profit corporation, located at 205 E.
University Ave, Georgetown, TX 78626.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, a Declaration of State of Disaster was issued by
Governor Abbott certifying that the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), which has been recognized
globally as a contagious respiratory virus, posed an imminent threat of disaster for all counties in
Texas; and

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2020, Governor Abbott determined that that state of disaster
continues to exist due to COVID-19 and issued a Proclamation renewing the disaster declaration
for all counties; and

WHEREAS, on May 12, 2020, Governor Abbott determined that the state of disaster
continues to exist due to COVID-19 and issued a Proclamation further renewing the disaster
declaration for all counties; and

WHEREAS, as a result of COVID-19 and the response measures taken, the Agency is in
need of assistance to meet the additional needs and services of the community, specifically funds
to assist in the payment of health care services for families affected by COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the Agency would like to request funding from the County made available
under Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by Section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”);

WHEREAS, the County also has available public service funds from the Tobacco
Settlement Pool of Williamson County;

WHEREAS, the County seeks to implement the first phase of funding under CARES Act
by December 30, 2020 and also a second phase of funding derived from the Tobacco Settlement
Pool (“Tobacco Funds™) after December 30, 2020 in order to maximize benefits for local residents;
and

WHEREAS, the County desires to engage the Agency as a subrecipient to assist the
County in utilizing the CARES Act funds as well as Tobacco Funds.



NOW, THEREFORE, WITNESSETH:

1.

2

1.1

1.2

1.3

Recitals. The recitals to this Agreement are hereby incorporated for all purposes.

Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement (“Effective Date”) is the latest date that
either party executes this Agreement, or the date this Agreement has been finally approved by
the County. Agency understands that this Agreement is dependent upon the approval of the
County.

Term. The initial term of this Agreement is from the Effective Date to December 30, 2020 in
order to provide CARES Act funding. Unless terminated by either party pursuant to paragraph
4.6, the Agreement will automatically renew for purposes of administering Tobacco Funds for
up to three additional one-year terms as follows: 1) on December 31, 2020 until December 30,
2021; 2) on December 31, 2021 until December 30, 2022; and 3) on December 31, 2022 until
December 30, 2023. After 2023, the contract must be revisited by County’s governing body.

I.
GENERAL OVERVIEW

Purpose. The County has in good faith determined that this Agreement serves a public
purpose. This public purpose includes, but is not limited to, the Agency’s efforts to meet
the additional needs and services of the community, specifically staffing costs,
unemployment insurance costs, professional fees, additional contract services, supplies and
related equipment and additional financial assistance, all incurred due to the impact of
COVID-19 or in the delivery of public health and safety operations for area residents.

Use of Funds. The Agency understands that the funds provided to it by the County will be
used solely for the program services as more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, attached
hereto and incorporated herein (“Allowable Expenditures”).

Distribution of Funds. The County will pay the total sum of Four-Hundred-Twenty-Four
Thousand, One-Hundred-Forty-Five Dollars and no/100 cents ($424,145.00) (CARES Act
Funds) to the Agency, conditioned upon Agency complying with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement. The Agency estimates that $424,145.00 of COVID-related expenditures
as outlined in Exhibit “A” will be incurred by December 30, 2020. The Agency agrees to
accept the not to exceed amount of $424,145.00 that will be disbursed from CARES Act
Funds. Requests for reimbursements from the County must meet program requirements
that include: 1. Patient is a legal resident and resides in Williamson County; 2. Patient
being uninsured, with no other payment source available for required healthcare; 3.
Individual is a patient of the Agency; and 4. Patient is at or below 250% of Federal Poverty
Level. Requests for reimbursement must comply with this agreement and will be submitted
to the Williamson County Auditor’s Office.




2.1

2.2

23

2.4

Additionally, the County will reimburse the Agency for Cancer Treatment of patients
identified through screening as having breast cancer over three (3) program years for a total
not to exceed amount of Five-Hundred-Twelve Thousand, Five-Hundred-Fourteen Dollars
and no/100 cents ($512,514.00) to be paid from the County’s Tobacco Settlement Pool
Funds (Tobacco Funds). Reimbursement for breast cancer treatment will comply with the
program requirements outlined above, provided, however, that the individuals may be
patients of the Agency or individuals who are not patients of the Agency but who have
been screened for program services eligibility by the Agency. Individuals accepted into
this program will receive treatment that follows the National Comprehensive Cancer Care
Network Guidelines (NCCN) from medical facilities and providers that are in the Central
Texas area.

II.
AGENCY PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipient Status. The County and the Agency agree that the Agency is a Subrecipient
as described in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.93. A Subrecipient is a non-Federal agency that receives a
subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out a part of a Federal program. The Agency,
as a subrecipient, will be responsible for administering the expenditures of the CARES Act
funds consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Act.

Single Audit Act. The Allowable Expenditures are considered to be federal financial
assistance subject to the Single Audit Act (31 U.S.C. §§ 7501-7507) and the related
provisions of the Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.303 regarding internal controls, §§
200.330 through 200.332 regarding subrecipient monitoring and management, and subpart
F regarding audit requirements. The Agency agrees to comply with the above.

Allowable Expenditures. The Agency agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws and regulations governing the expenditure of funds under this Agreement.
The Agency shall submit to the County Auditor’s office all necessary invoicing and
appropriate documentation evidencing expenditures and that said expenditures are
Allowable Expenditures. Allowable Expenditures are limited to those expenditures shown
on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. Despite this agreed upon
payment, Agency agrees to return to the County the amount representing the prorated
amount of the funds unearned if Agency’s project progress is insufficient or this agreement
is terminated for any reason or if Agency fails in any other respect under this agreement.

County Audit. The Agency agrees to allow the County to review Agency records to
determine their compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Agency, during normal
business hours shall allow County reasonable access to its records and books and all other
relevant records related to the administrative services provided for in this Agreement.



3.1

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

III.
COUNTY PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

County Payment Responsibility. After receipt of the Agency’s invoices, the County will
endeavor to pay the Allowable Expenditures as soon as possible, but in any event no more
than once monthly. The County shall have no obligation to pay Agency any Allowable
Expenses over $424,145.00 from CARES Act and $512,514.00 from the Tobacco Fund.

IV.
GENERAL CONDITIONS
Amendments or Modifications. No amendments or modifications to this Agreement may

be made, nor any provision waived, unless in writing signed by a person duly authorized
to sign Agreements on behalf of each party.

Relationship of Parties. In performing this Agreement, both the County and Agency will
act in an individual capacity, and not as agents, representatives, employees, employers,
partners, joint-venturers, or associates of one another. The employees or agents of either
party may not be, nor be construed to be, the employees or agents of the other party for any

purpose.

Captions. The captions in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not a part of
this Agreement. The captions do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions
of this Agreement.

Venue and Law. Venue for any legal action related to this Agreement is in Williamson
County, Texas. This Agreement is subject to all legal requirements of County, State and
Federal laws, and Agency agrees that it will promptly comply with all such applicable laws,
regulations, orders and rules of the State, County and other applicable governmental
agencies. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
and court decisions of the State of Texas without regard, however, to the conflicts of laws
provisions of Texas law.

Sole Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole Agreement between County and
Agency. Any prior Agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations, verbal or
otherwise, not expressly stated in this Agreement, are of no force and effect.

Termination: This Agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of either party,
without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty (30) days written
notice thereof.

Survival of terms of Agreement and obligations of parties. The terms of this Agreement
and the obligation of the parties relating to Section 14 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.




4.8.  Public Information Act Requirements. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552,
Government Code, may apply to this contract and the Agency agrees that the contract can
be terminated if the Agency knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement
of that subchapter.

4.9.  Certificate of Interested Parties. Agency agrees to comply with Texas Government Code
Section 2252.908, as it may be amended, and to complete Form 1295 "Certificate of
Interested Parties" as part of this Agreement if required by said statute.

4.10 Notices. Notices required by this Agreement are as follows:
County;
County Judge
710 Main Street, Suite 101
Georgetown, Texas 78628
and
County Auditor
710 Main Street, Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78628
Agency:
Lone Star Circle of Care
205 E. University Ave, Suite 300
Georgetown, TX 78626
Attention: Chief Executive Officer

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS)



WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS.

William Gravell, Jr.

ATTEST:

Nancy Rister , County Clerk

Date:

LONE STAR CIRCLE OF CARE

By: Q 4,//,_4//
== __
Its: CEO

Date:
12/17 [2020




EXHIBIT A

CARES ACT FUNDING POOL

Requested #
Item Description Vendor Cost Per Visit| of Wilco Visits| Total Cost
Mobile Mammography 3-D imaging system for
Big Pink Bus (3DP-Sys-3000 model) Hologic S 266,300
Engage specialist to repurpose existing
mammography coach to accommodate the new
Hologic 3-D system and acquire other necessary
equipment- requesting support for the following
equipment: communications system for 3D
system integration/EMR and UPS Power 1600XP
18k VA for Hologic 3-D System. Mobile Specialty Vehicles S 22,845
Primary Care Visits: Family Medicine - Uninsured
Visits provided during pandemic Lone Star Circle of Care  $ 160 500 $ 80,000
Behavioral/Mental Health Visits - uninsured
visits provided during the pandemic Lone Star Circle of Care S 110 500 S 55,000
TOTAL CARES Fund from Wilco S 424,145
TOBACCO SETTLEMENT POOL
Avg Total 2021-

Treatment | 2023 Patient |Not to Exceed
Item Description Vendor Cost Count Total Cost
Cancer Treatment Package Costs - Early ans Late  Various Central Texas
Stage Diagnoses Care Providers S 51,769 9 S 465,922
Administrative/Operating Costs (10% of Direct) LSCC S 46,592
TOTAL Tobacco Settlement Pool Budget S 512,514

Notes:
(1) - LSCC will pay external vendors/providers for equipment and services

(2) - Patient eligibility: Legal Williamson County residents at or below 250% of the Federal Poverty Level.




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 17.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

First Baptist Church Georgetown CARES Agreement

Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor

Department: County Auditor

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving an Agreement between Williamson
County and First Baptist Church Georgetown in relation to the Wilco Forward Grant Program
that is funded through the CARES Act for response to the Coronavirus Disease (COVID 19)
pandemic.

Background

First Baptist Church Georgetown provided a virtual learning HUB for the local school district
during COVID 19. The total request is $29,406.42.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount

Attachments
First Baptist Chruch Georgetown CARES Agreement

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:44 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 12/17/2020 11:24 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



WILLIAMSON COUNTY
SOCIAL SERVICE
FUNDING AGREEMENT
WITH
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH GEORGETOWN

This Social Service Funding Agreement (“the Agreement”), is made by and between
Williamson County, Texas (the “County”) located at 710 Main Street, Georgetown, Texas 78626,
and the First Baptist Church Georgetown (the “Agency”), a church located at 1333 W.
University Ave., Georgetown, Tx 78628.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, a Declaration of State of Disaster was issued by
Governor Abbott certifying that the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), which has been recognized
globally as a contagious respiratory virus, posed an imminent threat of disaster for all counties in
Texas; and

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2020, Governor Abbott determined that that state of disaster
continues to exist due to COVID-19 and issued a Proclamation renewing the disaster declaration
for all counties; and

WHEREAS, on May 12, 2020, Governor Abbott determined that the state of disaster
continues to exist due to COVID-19 and issued a Proclamation further renewing the disaster
declaration for all counties; and

WHEREAS, as a result of COVID-19 and the response measures taken, the Agency is in
need of assistance to meet the additional needs and services of the community, specifically use of
the Agency’s campus as a virtual learning HUB for the local school district and promote health
and safety for families affected by COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, the Agency would like to request funding from the County made available
under Section 601(a) of the Social Security Act, as added by Section 5001 of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”); and

WHEREAS, the County desires to engage the Agency as a subrecipient to assist the
County in utilizing the CARES Act funds to meet health and safety obligations of the County for
the benefit of local residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, WITNESSETH:

1. Recitals. The recitals to this Agreement are hereby incorporated for all purposes.

2. Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement (“Effective Date”) is the latest date that
either party executes this Agreement, or the date this Agreement has been finally approved by




the County. Agency understands that this Agreement is dependent upon the approval of the
County.

3. Term. The term of this Agreement is from the Effective Date to December 30, 2020.

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

2.2

2.5

I.
GENERAL OVERVIEW

Purpose. The County has in good faith determined that this Agreement serves a public
purpose. This public purpose includes, but is not limited to, the Agency’s efforts to meet
the additional needs and services of the community, specifically use of campus facilities as
a virtual learning HUB for the local school district and promote health and safety for
families affected by COVID-19, all incurred due to the impact of COVID-19 or in the
delivery of public health and safety operations for area residents.

Use of Funds. The Agency understands that the funds provided to it by the County will be
used solely for the program services as more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, attached
hereto and incorporated herein (“Allowable Expenditures™).

Distribution of Funds. The County will pay the total sum of Twenty-Nine Thousand, Four-
Hundred-Six Dollars and 42/100 cents ($29,406.42) (CARES Act Funds) to the Agency,
conditioned upon Agency complying with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The
Agency estimates that $29,406.42 of COVID-related expenditures as outlined in Exhibit
“A” will be incurred by December 30, 2020.

II.
AGENCY PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

Subrecipient Status. The County and the Agency agree that the Agency is a Subrecipient
as described in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.93. A Subrecipient is a non-Federal agency that receives a
subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out a part of a Federal program. The Agency,
as a subrecipient, will be responsible for administering the expenditures of the CARES Act
funds consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Act.

Single Audit Act. The Allowable Expenditures are considered to be federal financial
assistance subject to the Single Audit Act (31 U.S.C. §§ 7501-7507) and the related
provisions of the Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.303 regarding internal controls, §§
200.330 through 200.332 regarding subrecipient monitoring and management, and subpart
F regarding audit requirements. The Agency agrees to comply with the above.

Allowable Expenditures. The Agency agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state
and local laws and regulations governing the expenditure of funds under this Agreement.
The Agency shall submit to the County Auditor’s office all necessary invoicing and
appropriate documentation evidencing expenditures and that said expenditures are




24

Fl

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

Allowable Expenditures. Allowable Expenditures are limited to those expenditures shown
on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein. Despite this agreed upon
payment, Agency agrees to return to the County the amount representing the prorated
amount of the funds unearned if Agency’s project progress is insufficient or this agreement
is terminated for any reason or if Agency fails in any other respect under this agreement.

County Audit. The Agency agrees to allow the County to review Agency records to
determine their compliance with the terms of this Agreement. Agency, during normal
business hours shall allow County reasonable access to its records and books and all other
relevant records related to the administrative services provided for in this Agreement.

III.
COUNTY PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

County Payment Responsibility. After receipt of the Agency’s invoices, the County will
endeavor to pay the Allowable Expenditures as soon as possible, but in any event no more
than once monthly. The County shall have no obligation to pay Agency any Allowable
Expenses over $29,406.42.

Iv.
GENERAL CONDITIONS
Amendments or Modifications. No amendments or modifications to this Agreement may

be made, nor any provision waived, unless in writing signed by a person duly authorized
to sign Agreements on behalf of each party.

Relationship of Parties. In performing this Agreement, both the County and Agency will
act in an individual capacity, and not as agents, representatives, employees, employers,
partners, joint-venturers, or associates of one another. The employees or agents of either
party may not be, nor be construed to be, the employees or agents of the other party for any

purpose.

Captions. The captions in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not a part of
this Agreement. The captions do not in any way limit or amplify the terms and provisions
of this Agreement.

Venue and Law. Venue for any legal action related to this Agreement is in Williamson
County, Texas. This Agreement is subject to all legal requirements of County, State and
Federal laws, and Agency agrees that it will promptly comply with all such applicable laws,
regulations, orders and rules of the State, County and other applicable governmental
agencies. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
and court decisions of the State of Texas without regard, however, to the conflicts of laws
provisions of Texas law.




4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9

Sole Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole Agreement between County and
Agency. Any prior Agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations, verbal or
otherwise, not expressly stated in this Agreement, are of no force and effect.

Survival of terms of Agreement and obligations of parties. The terms of this Agreement
and the obligation of the parties relating to Section 14 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

Public Information Act Requirements. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552,
Government Code, may apply to this contract and the Agency agrees that the contract can
be terminated if the Agency knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement
of that subchapter.

Certificate of Interested Parties. Agency agrees to comply with Texas Government Code
Section 2252.908, as it may be amended, and to complete Form 1295 "Certificate of
Interested Parties" as part of this Agreement if required by said statute.

Notices. Notices required by this Agreement are as follows:
County;
County Judge
710 Main Street, Suite 101
Georgetown, Texas 78628
and
County Auditor
710 Main Street, Suite 301
Georgetown, Texas 78628
Agency:
First Baptist Church Georgetown

1333 W. University Ave.
Georgetown, TX 78628

(SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS)



WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS.

William Gravell, Jr.

ATTEST:

Nancy Rister , County Clerk

Date:

FIRST BAPTIST GEORGETOWN

By: KZM{/%@///“

Its: 2

Date:
|7 Dep Zo2v




EXHIBIT A

Williamson County Social Service Funding Agreement With First Baptist Church Georgetown

First Baptist Church Georgetown - Virtual Learning HUB for Georgetown ISD

As a result of COVID-19, First Baptist Church Georgetown (FBG) opened their doors to families in
Georgetown ISD who needed assistance with remote learning for the first three weeks of school
from August 20 through September 9. Working families with students in Kindergarten through
5th grade were able to apply for enrollment in this free program that provided supervised
learning assistance in a safe learning environment. In addition to schoolwork, the FBG team
planned a variety of safe but fun activities throughout each day. Daily lunch was provided, and

after-school care was also made available.

Summary of Allowable Expenses

Category

Building Total
Food Total
Personnel Total
Supplies Total
Grand Total

See attached for detail expenses.

Gross

$8,810.00
$13,726.80
$4,952.04
$1,917.58
$29,406.42



14/pLS ® SIY 97°86 - J19pea sse))

Upai) qnH
gnH 1eniJaiA Jo) AiaAap A1a2048 oy diy JaALIq
gnH 1eniJiA Joy Aiaanap A1s2048 oy diy JsALIg

gnH 1enlaiA Jo) AusAap A1ad0un) Juew|ep Jo) dif

dnH 40) 193BMIY 9L BYR

1d19231 150] - VOWA 04 ezzid gnH jenliA
wiooJ Aendsoy Joj syoeus - JusawasInquiLay
gnH 1enliA Joj SaL19d0.n)

anH - wy AendsoH - juswasinquiiay

gnH 1eniA Joj saLiadoln

qnH 1enldiA Joj ysunt

guruteay gqny

younj - 119g ode] - juawasinquiay

yaung qnH 1enliip

diy 6§ + youny gnH #/6

anH - wy Ajendsoy - juswasinquilay
Yyouny gnH 1eniA

gqnH 1enldiA Joj youni

saljlwe} B Sp 4o} jeauy jerdads Joj sayeddnd
yaunig qnH 1enlaipA

gnH JendiA 1o} S191em pue sydeus

qnH JenliiA 1o youni

syoeus gnH

pooj qnH Jen}iA

saljddng jeriojuer
103[04d gNH 1BNIAIA - S9ILAISS JeLiojuer
uolyedo)ly A3dLi30913

uonduinsaqg

68°/78S
08°97L°€LS
(65°9£9)
00°£$
00°6$
00°GLS
66°L1$
6% LS

€€ /¥S
67°G8S
06°L01$
¥0°201$
9P LS
GT'WLS
09°€61$
6G°091$
79°0L1S
88°0/1$
6Ev/LLS
GT'861S
00°00ZS
86°79¢$
98°#8¢€S
9L"GEPS
11°608$
9G°6586S$
00°018‘8S
00°00Z$
00°G86°TS
00°GZ9°SS

$5015

oLlley “Noc3<< 12UuUos.iad 070Z7/.L1/6
Jejoj poo4

V 14 12tYD pood  0Z0Z/LL/6

Jdewem poo4  0Z0Z//%/8

JJewiem poo4  0Z0Z/£Z7/8

Jlewepm pood  (070Z/1€/8

uoLyels 119ys pood  (0Z0Z/1Z/8

eZZld Sl11e poo4  0Z0Z/1Z/8
epuewy ‘AraT poo4  QZ0Z/L/6

JJewiem pood  0Z0Z/9Z/8

epuewly ‘Aaan poo4  (0Z0Z/0Z/8

1lewepm pood  (0Z0Z/€7/8

eZZld s,uyor eded poo4  (QZOZ/0L/6

ezzld s,uyor edeq poo4  (0Z0Z/TZ/3
"D 19RYDLW ‘1ahmes pood  0Z0Z/£/6

119g ode| pood  Q70Z/9Z/8
ezzld s,uyor edeq pood  QZ0Z/G/6

essljaw ‘Aqeu.eg poo4  0Z0Z/SZ/8

SATVNOaOW pood  0Z0Z/vT/8

ezzld s,uyor eded pood  0Z0Z/8Z/8
sAwwow Jesng poo4  QZ0Z/L/6

SAIVNOaOW pood  QZ0Z/¥T/8

1Jewiem poo4  0Z0Z/8Z/8

SATVNOaIW poo4  0Z0Z/LE/8

gnyd s,wes poo4  (0z0Z/61/8

V 14 2LyD pood  0Z0Z/LL/6

suipjing
laded 3seod yying  Bulpung  0zOzZ/LL/LL
‘9lAJSS JelIONURM YW B D BSulping  0Z0Z/8/6
SSIUIIN UMOIBBI08D Jo A1) Suiping  0Z0Z/LL/LL

93eQ

Jopusp Alosaje) SSToAT]

0L-0Z£SZ-0-0

sasuadx3 gnH ds|o - SUOISSIW |80
umo31a8ioan younyo 3jsiydeq 3s.i1




7 901°67S Jejo] puein
8G°/16°1S satjddns
1pa4d sjulod - sJ0323joad 98.uns B sdLIls uomod  (19°/66S) uozewy sanddns  0z0Z/LL/S
wnnaLUIn) gnH - 867719 $924nosay uelystiy) Aemay]  sanddns  0z0Z/vL/8
%00q U939 /M 30] 03 30]  66'F1S uozewy  sallddns  070Z/9/6
yoedyoeg Jnouwlly Japun G/ €S uozewy  sanddns  0z0Z/€/6
pJed JI8 1933UNPA  00°08S uozewy  sallddns  (0Z0Z/¥7/8
saljddns yeud - Juswsasinquial  /6°/G6$ 104e) ‘suamod sanddns  070Z/¥7/8
sanddns gnH  ££'%9$ gGDNAS/ssaulsng ewiepy,  sanddns  0z0Z/SZ/8
SYInJL 91919 J0} S9Zlid  T'99$ 1950e]  sanddns  0707/8/6
SPI gnH 1enliiA Syl o) sa\qlg  G6°H8S uozewy  sanddns  (0z0Z/L/6
SpJed> YI8 7 - Juswasinquitay  00°00Z$ epuewy ‘ArAa7  sanddns  0z0Z/8/6
dnH 1endILA Je spByj Joy sarddns  £€°06Z$ gONAS/ssaulsng Jewiep  salddns  0z0z/61/8
SpJed> Y5 9  00°00%S }954e]  sanddns  070Z/97/8
sdLiys Jamod pue sJo3d9304d 98ins  19°/6GS uozewy  sanddns  0zozZ/0L/8
SPI gNH 1BNLILA 3Y3 Joj sa1qid  78°6/9% uozewy  sanddns  070Z/7/6
¥0°756 VS 1uuos.Iad
IU/pLS ® SIY Gy - L7/ - 19pead] sse)d  00°€9S Y1asS ‘wnequasoy |auuosiad  0Z0T/E/6
IY/pLS ® 4Y 6 - 8/6-€/6 - 19pRAT SSe)  00°9TLS yias ‘wnequasoy 1auuosiad  0ZOZ/0L/6
AU/pLS @ SIY 6 - 97/8-07/8 - 19pea] ssey)  00°9Z1S yias ‘wnequasoy 1duuosidd  0ZOZ/L/6
SINOH Jew.oN J49AQ SJ1Y $°9] - JOJeulpJoo) QOF Z€7S eje]| ‘uojuloy] |auuoSIDd  0ZOZ/LL/6
SJNOH JeW.ON J9AQ S4Y 9¢°€] - Jojeulploo) 8G°Z€7S euueys ‘sumMoq 12uu0s.iad 070Z/£/6
IY/p1$® SIY G°/L - 8/6-€/6 - 19pea] SSe)D  00°GHTS AoteH “Aaxonis |ouuosiad  070Z/0L/6
SINOH JeW.ON J3AQ SJY Z°9] - JOjeulploo)  £4°G6TS euueys ‘sumoq |auuosiad  0Z0Z/LL/6
SINOH JeW.oN J2AQ SJY G9°Q7 - JojeuLpioo) G9°Lz7sS eJje] ‘Uuojuloyl 1dUUOSIId €66L/1L/6
SINOH JeW.ION J9AQ SJY Z1°7Z - J0leuLpioo) 99 /€S eje| ‘uojuJdoy] |duUUOSIDd 0Z0Z/11/6
SINOH JeW.IoN J9AQ SJY G°07 - Jojeulpioo) /€°€/€S euueys ‘sumoq |auuosiad  0Z0Z/LL/6
Sy p€ - J9pea sse)  00°9LKS Asley ‘Aoxdnis jauuosiad  0707/€/6
97/8-07/8 - 19pea] Sse)  00°€8yS AoteH “Asxonis |ouuosidad  070Z/L/6
1Y/pLS @ sS4y '9g - 1opea sse))  90°708$ Slijey ‘zounw jauuosidad  0Z0Z/€/6
NS 93eq
uolLldLidseg $Sso.o J0pUSA Huomwumu ..%\E_
01-0Z€SZ-0-0

sasuadx3 gnH ds|o - suolssiy jed07
UM0338.1090 yoiny) 3siideg 3s.i




93eQq
SO I0AU]

uondidsaqg Ssodn jopusp Aiosaie)

01-0Z€SZ-0-0
sasuadx3 gnH dslo - suolissiy ]ed07]
UM03951099 Youny?) 3siideg 3sai4



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 18.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

Animal Shelter Electrical Proposal

Submitted For:  Randy Barker Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the proposal between Williamson
County and Doyle Electric, LLC for electrical services at the Williamson County Animal Shelter,
in the estimated amount of $4,707 and authorizing execution of the proposal.

Background

Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Animal Shelter.
Proposal attached outlines the electrical work and components to be added to the animal
shelter facility in preparation for an X-Ray machine. X-Ray machine was previously approved
on 12/12/2020 agenda in award of RFP 1705 Animal Shelter Vet Equipment. This proposal falls
under the Master Agreement #1710 the county has with Doyle Electric. Master Agreement was
approved on 7/21/2020 (attached). This expenditure will be charged to 396P. Department
contact is Misty Valenta.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |
Attachments

Proposal

Master Agreement

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 10:48 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:09 AM

Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 12/15/2020 02:44 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Doyle Electric, LLC
917 Sixth St.
Marble Falls, Tx. 78654
Phone: 512-743-5534

Bid Proposal

Date: 11/19/20
Attention: Tom Stanfield
WILCO
SUBJECT: Add power for X-Ray equipment at Animal Shelter

Electrical Proposal
Thank you for the opportunity to offer our proposal for the subject project. Our pricing encompasses:

I. Documents
A. Specifications and Drawings — None

Il. Scope of Work
A. Our proposal includes:
1. Add 4 duplex receptacles, each on dedicated circuits, in X-Ray room
2. Use existing spare breakers in Panel L2 for the 4 new circuits
3. New raceway to be run through the attic from panel to above room.
4. Surface mounted raceway to be used in X-Ray room
5. All work to be performed during regular hours (Mon-Fri 7:00-3:30)

B. Clarifications:
1. All wiring to be copper.
2. Proposal is based off jobsite walk with Tom Stanfield on 11-18-20

C. Exclusions:

. X-Ray Room modification

. Utility company charges/fees

. Roof penetrations

. Payment and performance bond

. Fire Alarm. Tele/data Systems

. Trash removal (onsite dumpster provided by others)

. Painting

. SWPPP

. All formed Concrete and bollards

. Light Pole Bases

11. Low Voltage Controls, Cabling, Devices, systems, and mounting
12. Anything not specifically mentioned in inclusions

13. Arc Fault Analysis/Engineering Fees

14. Lightning protection

15. Mechanical Equipment modifications or additions

16. Sales tax. (tax certificate to be provided to Doyle Electric)

©Co~NOOOD~WNER

=
o



[ll. Pricing Summary
A. Base Bid $4707.00

Note: No specs provided
Please call me if you have any questions or require additional information

Sincerely,

Tommy Doyle
Doyle Electric, LLC
TECL #32035
(512) 845-0607

PROPOSAL ACCEPTED BY:

DATE:




THE STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON §

MASTER SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR
ELECTRICAL REPAIR, MAINTENANCE

& RELATED SERVICES
RFP #T-710
(Doyle Electric LLC)

Important Notice: County Purchase Orders and Contracts constitute expenditures
of public funds, and all vendors are hereby placed on notice that any quotes,
invoices or any other forms that seek to unilaterally impose contractual or
quasicontractual terms are subject to the extent authorized by Texas law, including
but not limited to Tex. Const. art. XI, § 7, the Texas Government Code, the Texas
Local Government Code, the Texas Transportation Code, the Texas Health &
Safety Code, and Opinions of the Texas Attorney General relevant to local
governmental entities.

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between Williamson County,
Texas (hereinafter “The County”), a political subdivision of the State of Texas, acting
herein by and through its governing body, and Doyle Electric LLC (hereinafter “Service
Provider”), with mailing address at 1108 S Lakeside Dr. Burnet, Texas 78611 (phone
512-743-5534). The County agrees to engage Service Provider as an independent
contractor, to assist in providing certain operational services pursuant to the following
terms, conditions, and restrictions:

L.

No Agency Relationship & Indemnification: It is understood and agreed that
Service Provider shall not in any sense be considered a partner or joint venturer with The
County, nor shall Service Provider hold himself out as an agent or official representative
of The County unless expressly authorized to do so by a majority of the Williamson
County Commissioners Court. Service Provider shall be considered an independent
contractor for the purpose of this agreement and shall in no manner incur any expense or
liability on behalf of The County other than what may be expressly allowed under this
agreement. The County will not be liable for any loss, cost, expense or damage, whether
indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, consequential of any kind whatsoever for any
acts by Service Provider or failure to act relating to the services being provided. Service




Provider agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend The County against any claim,
demand, loss, injury, damages, action, or liability of any kind against The County
resulting from any services Service Provider perform on behalf of The County.

II.

Entire Contract & Incorporated Documents: This Contract constitutes the
entire Contract between the parties and may not be modified or amended other than by a
written instrument executed by both parties. Documents expressly incorporated (as if
copied in full) into this Contract include the following:

A. RFP #T-710 (Electric Repair, Maintenance, and Installation Services);

B. Service Provider’s Response to RFP #T-710, dated June 24, 2020,
including attachments, which is incorporated herein as if copied in full;
and

C. Any required insurance certificates evidencing required coverages.

The County reserves the right and discretion (pursuant to public policy and Texas
Constitutional principles) to determine applicable provisions where there is any conflict
between this Contract and any of the above-referenced contract documents/exhibits or
incorporated documents.

I11.

No Assignment: Service Provider may not assign this contract.

IV.

Compliance with All Laws: Service Provider agrees and will comply with any
and all local, state or federal requirements with respect to the services rendered.

V.

Consideration and Compensation: Service Provider will be compensated based
on the rate schedule set forth in Attachment 3.1 of Response to RFP #T-710 which is
incorporated herein as if copied in full. The work performed under this agreement is
subject to available funding in the Williamson County Facilities Departmental
budget for electrical repair, maintenance or installation work and the issuance of
Purchase Order(s). Payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251
of the Texas Government Code. An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after
the later of (1) the date The County receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the




performance of the service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest
charges for any overdue payments shall be paid by The County in accordance with Texas
Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that shall
accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of The County’s fiscal year
in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street
Journal on the first day of July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a
Saturday or Sunday.

VL

Insurance: Service Provider shall provide and maintain, until the services
covered in this Contract is completed and accepted by The County, the minimum
insurance coverage in the minimum amounts as described below. Coverage shall be
written on an occurrence basis by companies authorized and admitted to do business in
the State of Texas and rated A- or better by A.M. Best Company or otherwise acceptable
to The County and name The County as an additional insured.

Type of Coverage Limits of Liability
a. Worker's Compensation Statutory
b. Employer's Liability
Bodily Injury by Accident $500,000 Ea. Accident
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Ea. Employee
Bodily Injury by Disease $500,000 Policy Limit
C. Comprehensive general liability including completed operations

and contractual liability insurance for bodily injury, death, or property damages
in the following amounts:

COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE
Comprehensive

General Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000

(including premises,

completed operations
and contractual)

Aggregate policy limits: $2,000,000



d. Comprehensive automobile and auto liability insurance (covering
owned, hired, leased and non-owned vehicles):

COVERAGE PER PERSON PER OCCURRENCE

Bodily injury $1,000,000 $1,000,000

(including death)

Property damage $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Aggregate policy limits No aggregate limit

Service Provider, as an independent contractor, meets the qualifications of an
“Independent Contractor” under Texas Worker’s Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code,
Section 406.141, and must provide its employees, agents and sub-subcontractors
worker’s compensation coverage. Contactor shall not be entitled to worker’s
compensation coverage or any other type of insurance coverage held by The County.

Upon execution of this Contract, Service Provider shall provide The County with
insurance certificates evidencing compliance with the insurance requirements of this
Contract.

VII.

INDEMNIFICATION - EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND (WITH
COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND THE
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND DIRECTORS
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”) AND SHALL ASSUME ENTIRE RESPONSIBILITY AND
LIABILITY (OTHER THAN AS A RESULT OF INDEMNITEES’ GROSS NEGLIGENCE) FOR ANY
CLAIM OR ACTION BASED ON OR ARISING OUT OF THE PERSONAL INJURY, OR DEATH, OF ANY
EMPLOYEE OF THE SERVICE PROVIDER, OR OF ANY SUBCONTRACTOR, OR OF ANY OTHER
ENTITY FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, WHICH OCCURRED OR WAS ALLEGED TO
HAVE OCCURRED ON THE WORK SITE OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE OF THE
WORK. SERVICE PROVIDER HEREBY INDEMNIFIES THE INDEMNITEES EVEN TO THE EXTENT
THAT SUCH PERSONAL INJURY WAS CAUSED OR ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY THE
SOLE, COMPARATIVE OR CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF THE STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY
INDEMNIFIED PARTY. THIS INDEMNIFICATION SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO DAMAGES,
COMPENSATION, OR BENEFITS PAYABLE UNDER INSURANCE POLICIES, WORKERS
COMPENSATION ACTS, DISABILITY BENEFITS ACTS, OR OTHER EMPLOYEES BENEFIT ACTS.

INDEMNIFICATION - OTHER THAN EMPLOYEE PERSONAL INJURY CLAIMS: TO
THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, SERVICE PROVIDER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND
(WITH COUNSEL OF THE COUNTY’S CHOOSING), AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, AND




THE COUNTY’S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, PARTNERS, OFFICERS, AND
DIRECTORS (COLLECTIVELY, THE “INDEMNITEES”’) FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, DAMAGES,
LOSSES AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ATTORNEYS’ FEES, ARISING OUT
OF OR ALLEGED TO BE RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE
WORK DESCRIBED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY THE NEGLIGENCE, ACTS, ERRORS,
OR OMISSIONS OF SERVICE PROVIDER OR ITS SUBCONTRACTORS, ANYONE EMPLOYED BY
THEM OR ANYONE FOR WHOSE ACTS THEY MAY BE LIABLE, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER OR
NOT SUCH CLAIM, DAMAGE, LOSS OR EXPENSE IS CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY A PARTY
INDEMNIFIED HEREUNDER.

VIIL

Services: Service Provider shall provide services as an independent contractor
pursuant to terms and policies of the Williamson County Commissioners Court. Service
Provider expressly acknowledges that he or she is not an employee of The County. The
services include, but are not limited to the following items in order to complete the
project:

As described in RFP #T-710 and Service Provider’s Response, which are
incorporated herein as if copied 1n full.

IX.

Good Faith Clause: Service Provider agrees to act in good faith in the
performance of this agreement.

X.

Confidentiality: Service Provider expressly agrees that he or she will not use any
incidental confidential information that may be obtained while working in a
governmental setting for his or her own benefit, and agrees that he or she will not enter
any unauthorized areas or access confidential information and he or she will not disclose
any information to unauthorized third parties, and will take care to guard the security of
the information at all times.

XI.

Termination: This agreement may be terminated at any time at the option of
either party, without future or prospective liability for performance upon giving thirty
(30) days written notice thereof. In the event of termination, The County will only be
liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually received.



XII.

Venue and Applicable Law: Venue of this contract shall be Williamson County,
Texas, and the laws of the State of Texas shall govern all terms and conditions.

XIII.

Effective Date and Term: This contract shall be in full force and effect when
signed by all parties and shall continue for a reasonable time period for the specific
project and shall terminate upon project completion or when terminated pursuant to
paragraph XI above or pursuant to what is contemplated by RFP #T-710.

XIV.

Severability: In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this
agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any
respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision
in this agreement and this agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision had never been contained in it.

XV.

Right to Audit: Service Provider agrees that The County or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment under this
Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books,
documents, papers and records of Service Provider which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Service Provider agrees that The County shall
have access during normal working hours to all necessary Service Provider facilities and
shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in
compliance with the provisions of this section. The County shall give Service Provider
reasonable advance notice of intended audits.

XVI.

No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers: Nothing in this agreement will
be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of The County, the
Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County Judge.




XVIL

County Judge or Presiding Officer Authorized to Sign Contract: The

presiding officer of The County’s governing body who is authorized to execute this
instrument by order duly recorded may execute this contract on behalf of The County.

Executed this 21st day of July, 2020 to be effective as of the date of the last
party’s exccution below.

County:
Judge Bl Gravell T /
Judge Bill Gravell Jr. (Jul 21,2020 16:29 CDT) <
Hon. Bill Gravell " Authorized Representative
Williamson County Judge
Date: Jul21,2020 Date: 7[/(,/010010




Agenda ltem #40 7-21-2020 (MSA Doyle
Electric RFP T710)

Final Audit Report 2020-07-21
Created: 2020-07-21
By: Thomas Skiles (blake.skiles@wilco.org)
Status: Signed
Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAKL-xgtBs71CYIh_ZyBfVAQip-AXpbpK2

"Agenda ltem #40 7-21-2020 (MSA Doyle Electric RFP T710)" H
istory

9 Document created by Thomas Skiles (blake.skiles@wilco.org)
2020-07-21 - 6:16:50 PM GMT- |IP address: 66.76.4.65

£ Document emailed to aschiele@wilco.org for delegation
2020-07-21 - 6:17:16 PM GMT

™ Email viewed by aschiele@wilco.org
2020-07-21 - 6:38:12 PM GMT- IP address: 23.103.200.254

] Document signing delegated to Judge Bill Gravell Jr. (bgravell@wilco.org) by aschiele@wilco.org
2020-07-21 - 6:38:23 PM GMT- IP address: 66.76.4.65

% Document emailed to Judge Bill Gravell Jr. (bgravell@wilco.org) for signature
2020-07-21 - 6:38:24 PM GMT

™ Email viewed by Judge Bill Gravell Jr. (bgravell@wilco.org)
2020-07-21 - 9:29:14 PM GMT- IP address: 23.103.200.254

% Document e-signed by Judge Bill Gravell Jr. (bgravell@wilco.org)
Signature Date: 2020-07-21 - 9:29:27 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 66.76.4.65

@ Signed document emailed to aschiele@wilco.org, becky.pruitt@wilco.org, Thomas Skiles
(blake.skiles@wilco.org), and Judge Bill Gravell Jr. (bgravell@wilco.org)

2020-07-21 - 9:29:27 PM GMT




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 19.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

Pitney Bowes SendSuite

Submitted For:  Randy Barker Submitted By: Erica Smith, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the agreement between Williamson
County and Pitney Bowes, Inc. for SendSuite Tracking and equipment in the amount of
$10,377.81 pursuant to BuyBoard contract #576-18, and authorizing execution of the
agreement.

Background

Approval of this item will support the operations of the Williamson County Tax Office by allowing
them to track mail. Agreement attached outlines the software, subscription, and maintenance
details. IT has approved this technology request. Initial purchase total is $8,360.91. In addition
to the purchase price there is an annual fee of $587.35. This annual fee is free for the first
year. Monthly software maintenance is $224.10, billed quarterly at $672.30. Total amount for
FY21 would be $10,377.81. Purchase for FY21 will be charged to VIT funds. Fees

for subsequent years will be budgeted and charged to General Fund: Software Maintenance in
the amount of $2,689.20 to .004505 and Equipment Maintenance Fees in the amount of
$587.35 to .004500. Department contact is Judy Kocian.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
Agreement

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 09:44 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 09:47 AM

Form Started By: Erica Smith Started On: 12/15/2020 02:45 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



pitney bowes \(@\.

Purchase Agreement/Equipment and Software Maintenance Agreement

Agreement Number
Your Business Information |

Full Legal Name of Client / DBA Name of Client Tax ID # (FEIN/TIN)

WILLIAMSON COUNTY OF 746000978

Sold-To: Address
904 S MAIN ST, GEORGETOWN, TX, 78626-5829, US

Sold-To: Contact Name Sold-To: Contact Phone # Sold-To: Account #
Judy Kocian (512) 943-1954 0016660337

Bill-To: Address
904 S MAIN ST, GEORGETOWN, TX, 78626-5829, US

Bill-To: Contact Name Bill-To: Contact Phone # Bill-To: Account # Bill-To: Email
Judy Kocian (512) 943-1954 0016660337 jkocian@wilco.org

Ship-To: Address

904 S MAIN ST, GEORGETOWN, TX, 78626-5829, US

Ship-To: Contact Name Ship-To: Contact Phone # Ship-To: Account #
Judy Kocian (512) 943-1954 0016660337
PO #

Y O U T B USTNES'S N © € (1S 1500000000000

Oty Iltem Business Solution Description Sales Type Price

1 SSO PURCHASE $0.00
SendSuite Tracking Online

1 Jz20 PURCHASE $881.37
SendPro Enterprise Medium-Volume Printer

1 STDSLA SLA $587.35
Standard SLA-Equipment Service Agreement (for SendSuite Tracking Online)

2 T6MD PURCHASE $2,301.30
SSTO - Wireless Mobile Scanner T6MD

T6RG PURCHASE $2,291.94
SSTO Onsite HW Inst, Trng<Full Day, 4ppl

2 T790031 PURCHASE $1,290.00
Single Bay Cradle for T764/5, T6MD/E

2 T790032 PURCHASE $1,030.28
Ethernet Adapter T764/5, T6MD/E

1 T7WE PURCHASE $442.01
DS4608 Wedge Scanner

1 T8DD RENT $224.10
SSTO Enhanced Receive and Deliver

1 TS31 PURCHASE $124.01
Low to Mid Vol Cont. Therm Direct Labels

US356018.1 6/17 Page 1 of 2 Y101991921
©2017 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved. See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Pitney Bowes Confidential Information



Purchase Total** $8,360.91
Monthly Total** $224.10
Annual Total** $587.35

**Plus applicable taxes which will be applied at the time of billing.

Your Payment P

Quarterly Billing Total** Annual Billing Total**
Type Fees Type Fees Tax Exempt
Subscriptions $672.30 Equipment Maintenance $587.35 () Tax Exempt Certificate Attached
( ) Tax Exempt Certificate Not Required
() Purchase Power® transaction fees included
() Purchase Power® transaction fees extra
Shipping and Handling $0.00

Initial Term : 12 Months
**Plus applicable taxes which will be applied at the time of billing.

'Y O U SigINALUTE B €1 OV s

By signing below, you agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions of your State's/Entity's/Cooperative's contract, including the Pitney Bowes Terms, which are available at
http://www.pb.com/states and are incorporated by reference (collectively, this "Agreement”). The terms and conditions of this Agreement will govern this transaction and be binding on us
after we have completed our credit and documentation approvals process and have signed below. If software is included in the Order, additional terms apply which are available by clicking
on the hyperlink for that software located at http://www.pitneybowes.com/us/license-terms-of-use/software-and-subscription-terms-and-conditions.html. Those additional terms are
incorporated by reference.

BuyBoard #576-18
State/Entity's Contract #

Client Signature

Print Name

Title

Date

Email Address

S €S 1N O M G O I 1550000000000

Lonnie Kennedy I lonnie.kennedy@pb.com

Account Rep Name Email Address

US356018.1 6/17 Page 2 of 2 Y101991921

©2017 Pitney Bowes Inc. All rights reserved. See Pitney Bowes Terms for additional terms and conditions

Pitney Bowes Confidential Information



Commissioners Court - Regular Session 20.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020
Ingram Technologies Panasonic Cameras

Submitted For: Randy Barker Submitted By: Andrew Portillo,
Purchasing

Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase for in-car camera

systems for new EMS vehicles from Ingram Technologies, LLC in the amount of $59,881.74,
per the terms of DIR Contract #DIR-TS0O-4025 and authorizing execution of the quote.

Background

This is in-car camera systems for the new vehicles that are being purchased and outfitted this
fiscal year. The IT Department was able to keep this number to a minimum by removing and
reinstalling some existing systems. This is a planned, budgeted item in the Technology Services
budget. Point of contact Richard Semple. Funding source 01.0100.0503.005700.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |
Attachments

quote
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 09:47 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 09:48 AM

Form Started By: Andrew Portillo Started On: 12/15/2020 03:32 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Ingram Technologies LLC

c/o Scott Ingram
PO Box 203324
Austin, TX 78720

Quote

Date

Estimate #

12/1/2020

2931

Name / Address

Ship To

Williamson County ITS
Information Technologies Srv
301 SE Inner Loop-Suite 105
Georgetown, TX 78626

Williamson County ITS
Information Technologies Srv
301 SE Inner Loop-Suite 105
Georgetown, TX 78626

Rep

SAI

Description

Qty

MSRP

Price

Total

TEXAS DIR-TSO-4025

Quote good until 12/30/2020

ARB-KIT-HD (6)

MSRP $6250.00

PANASONIC : Arbitrator MK3, HD Camera, 256 GB
SSD, Wireless 1 integrated option

ARB-KIT-HDVC35 (7)

MSRP: $5,652.00

Panasonic Arbitrators - I-Pro ARBITRATOR MK3 AS1
COMPATIBLE VC-35 CAMERA 256 GB SSD WL

ARB-SOFICVOPBUNS3 (13)

MSRP: $140.00

In-Car Video, UEMSI, On Prem Storage Bundle Per
Device Year 1, 2 & 3(Includes Device License, Helpdesk)
ARB-WV-VC31-C (6)

720p HD Rear Camera with Black Body + Cable (IR
Emitter)

TGS-3DP (6)
G-Force Sensor for Arbitrator Vehicle, includes cables

ARB-BWC3CTB-VDOCKA (6)

MSRP: $590.00

NEW COMMON TRIGGER BOX (CTB) AND
IN-VEHICLE PAIRING DOCK W/WIRING HARNESS
Standard Shipping Included

13

4,371.14

3,675.00429

115.00154

376.96

237.18167

458.33333

0.00

26,226.84T

25,725.03T

1,495.02T

2,261.76T

1,423.09T

2,750.00T

0.00

Sales Tax (0.00)

$0.00

Total

$59,881.74

Signature




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 21.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

CC 2 Datagain

Submitted For:  Randy Barker Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Drug Information
Management System (DIMS) software from DataGain, for County Court at Law #2, in the
amount of $1,800.00 and authorizing execution of the associated documents.

Background

Approval of this item will support the operations of the County Court at Law 2. The $1,800.00

fee is for the annual subscription and includes the system set-up, configuration, data migration
and end-user training. Department contacts are Minnie Beteille and Jo-Ell Guzman. Funding

Source is 439P.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |
Attachments

Master Agreement

Order Form
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 10:50 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:53 AM

Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 12/16/2020 02:17 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

This MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT FOR DIMS, including all exhibits
hereto (this “Agreement”), is made and entered into on _12/11 , 2020 (“Effective Date”)
by and between Datagain Inc. (“Datagain’) a New Jersey corporation having offices at 1
Creekside Court, Secaucus, New Jersey, USA and __Williamson County (“Client”), a

Governmental Entity having its principal place of business at, 405 Martin
Luther King Street, Williamson, Georgetown, 78626

THIS MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) GOVERNS
YOUR ACQUISITION AND USE OF OUR SERVICES.

BY EXECUTING AN ORDER FORM THAT REFERENCES THIS AGREEMENT,
YOU AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU ARE ENTERING
INTO THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF A COMPANY OR OTHER LEGAL
ENTITY, YOU REPRESENT THAT YOU HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO BIND SUCH
ENTITY AND ITS AFFILIATES TO THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

Where necessary, Datagain or Client is individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively
as “Parties” in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties intending to be legally bound agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS

"Affiliate" means any entity which directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with the subject entity. "Control," for purposes of this definition, means direct or
indirect ownership or control of more than 50% of the voting interests of the subject entity.

“Datagain Technology" means all of the proprietary technology (including software, hardware,
products, processes, algorithms, user interfaces, APIs, know-how, techniques, designs and other
tangible or intangible technical material or information) made available to Client by Datagain in
providing the Services;

"Services" means the products and services offered by Datagain and made available to Client via
the customer login link and/or other web pages designated by Datagain.

"Content" means the documents, software, products and services contained or made available to
Client in the course of using the Services that does not contain any Client information or data;
“Content” exclude Non-Datagain Applications and content.

"Non-Datagain Applications and Content" means online and offline software products,
services and content that are provided by entities or individuals other than Datagain and are
clearly identified as such, and that interoperate with the Services with Datagain’s written consent.

"Order Form" means the documents for placing orders hereunder, which are entered into

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

between Client and Datagain from time to time. Order Form(s) shall be deemed incorporated
herein by reference.

"Purchased Services" means Services that Client purchases under an Order Form, as
distinguished from those provided pursuant to a free trial.

"Malicious Code" means viruses, worms, time bombs, Trojan horses and other harmful or
malicious code, files, scripts, agents or programs.

"Users" means individuals who are authorized by Client to use the Services, for whom
subscriptions to the Services have been ordered, and who have been supplied user identifications
and passwords by Client (or by Datagain at Client request). Users include Client employees,
consultants, contractors and agents, provided however, Datagain’s competitors or vendors of
complimentary products are not Users and may not access or view the Services without our
express written consent.

“Client Data" means all electronic data or information submitted by Client to the Purchased
Services.

2. SERVICES

2.1. Provision of Services. Datagain shall make the Services available to Client pursuant
to this Agreement and the relevant Order Forms during a subscription term. Client
purchases hereunder are neither contingent on the delivery of any future functionality or
features nor dependent on any oral or written public comments made by Datagain
regarding future functionality or features. This does not include browser or device
compatibility related upgrades and fixes.

2.2. User Subscriptions. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Order Form, (i)
Services are purchased as User subscriptions and may be accessed by no more than the
specified number of Users as described in the Order Form(s), (ii) additional User
subscriptions may be added during the applicable subscription term at the same pricing as
that for the pre-existing subscriptions thereunder, prorated for the remainder of the
subscription term in effect at the time the additional User subscriptions are added, and
(iii) the added User subscriptions shall terminate on the same date as the pre-existing
subscriptions. User subscriptions are for designated Users only and cannot be shared or
used by more than one User but may be reassigned to new Users replacing former Users
who no longer require ongoing use of the Services.

3. USE OF THE SERVICES

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

3.1. License Grant. Datagain hereby grant’s Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable,
worldwide right to use the Services as described on the relevant Order Form(s), solely for
Client’s internal business purposes, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. All rights not expressly granted to Client are reserved by Datagain.

3.2. Restrictions. Client shall not permit third parties, without Datagain’s express
written consent, (i) license, sublicense, sell, resell, transfer, assign, distribute or otherwise
commercially exploit or make available to any third party the Services or the Content in
any way for any reason; (i) modify or make derivative works based upon the Services,
Datagain Technology or the Content; or (iii) reverse engineer or access the Services in
order to (a) build a complimentary or competitive product or service, (b) build a product
using similar ideas, features, functions or graphics of the Services, or (c) copy any ideas,
features, functions or graphics of the Services. User licenses cannot be shared or used by
more than one individual User but may be reassigned from time to time to new Users
who are replacing former Users who have terminated employment or otherwise changed
job status or function and no longer use the Services. A violation of this paragraph 3.2
shall be considered a material breach of the contract.

3.3. Our Responsibilities. Datagain shall: (i) provide basic support for the Services to
Client including a) phone and email technical support, b) user guides and FAQs c)
dedicated account manager (ii) use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Services
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, except for (a) planned downtime of which
Datagain shall give Client written notice, or (b) any unavailability of the Services caused
by circumstances beyond Datagain’s reasonable control, (iii) provide the Services only
in accordance with applicable laws and government regulations, and (iv) to comply in all
respects with the applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations and decisions of any
legislative, administrative or judicial body exercising any power or jurisdiction over any
Services described in this Agreement. The Services may be subject to limitations, delays,
and other problems inherent in the use of the internet and electronic communications.

3.4. Protection of Client Data. Datagain shall maintain, or cause to be maintained,
commercially reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical, and technical
safeguards for protection of the security, confidentiality, and integrity of Client Data
stored with Datagain’s hosting vendor. We shall not (a) modify Client’s Data, (b)
disclose, provide, rent, or sell Client’s Data except as compelled by law in accordance
with Section 7.3 (Compelled Disclosure) or as expressly permitted in writing by Client,
or (¢) access Client Data except to provide the Services and prevent or address service or
technical problems, or at Client’s request in connection with customer support matters.

3.5. Data Storage. Datagain will determine the locations of the data centers in which
Client Data will be stored and accessible by Client Users.

3.6. Client Responsibilities. Client shall (i) be responsible for Users’ compliance with

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

this Agreement, (ii) be responsible for the accuracy, quality and legality of Client’s Data
and of the means by which Client acquired the Data, (iii) if applicable to Client, maintain
processes, controls and procedures to ensure Client Users compliance with statutory and
regulatory requirements, (iv) prevent unauthorized access to or use of the Services, and
notify Datagain promptly of any such unauthorized access or use of any password or
account or any other breach of security, (v) use the Services only in accordance with the
applicable laws and government regulations, (vi) provide all hardware, systems software
and third party software for Services that run on Client’s servers, and (vii) provide
desktop computers and related software to operate the Services. Client shall not (a) use
the Services to store or transmit infringing, libelous, or otherwise unlawful or tortious
material, or to store or transmit material in violation of third-party privacy rights, (d) use
the Services to store or transmit Malicious Code, (¢) interfere with or disrupt the integrity
or performance of the Services or third-party data contained therein, or (f) attempt to gain
unauthorized access to the Services or their related systems or networks. Client is
responsible for all activities undertaken by Client Users which result in unauthorized
access to Client data.

3.7. Storage Limitations. There is no limit on the amount of data or documents Client
may store in the Services.

4. NON-DATAGAIN APPLICATIONS AND CONTENT

4.1. Acquisition of Non-Datagain Applications and Content. Datagain may from time
to time make available to Client third-party products or services, including but not limited
to Non-Datagain Applications and Content, training and other consulting services. In no
event shall Client be obligated to purchase any third-party products or services available
from Datagain. Any acquisition by Client of such Non-Datagain Applications or Content,
and any exchange of data between Client and any Non-Datagain provider, is solely
between Client and the applicable Non-Datagain provider of such applications or content.
Datagain does not warrant or support Non-Datagain Applications or Content, whether or
not they are designated by Datagain as “certified” or otherwise, except as explicitly
specified in an Order Form. Datagain has the authority to utilize and integrate other third
party software into Datagain’s product. No purchase of Non-Datagain Applications or
Content is required to use the Services except a supported computing device, operating
system, compliant web browser and Internet connection.

5. FEES AND PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

5.1. Fees. Client shall pay all undisputed fees specified in all Order Forms hereunder.
Except as otherwise specified herein or in an Order Form, (i) fees are based on services
purchased and not actual usage, (ii) payment obligations are non-cancelable and fees paid
are non-refundable.

5.2. Invoicing and Payment. Client will provide Datagain with a valid purchase order

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

or alternative purchase confirmation document which is reasonably acceptable to
Datagain. Datagain will issue Invoices in accordance with the relevant Order Form.
Unless otherwise stated in the Order Form, invoiced charges are due Net 30 days from
the invoice date. Client is responsible for providing complete and accurate billing and
contact information and notifying of any changes.

5.3. Suspension of Service. If any amount owed by Client under this or any other
agreement for Datagain’s services is sixty (60) or more days overdue, Datagain may
suspend the Services until such amounts are paid in full. Datagain will give at least
fifteen (15) days’ prior notice that the account is overdue before suspending services.

5.4. Payment Disputes. Datagain shall not exercise the rights under Section 5.3
(Suspension of Service) if Client is disputing the applicable charges reasonably and in
good faith and are cooperating diligently to resolve the dispute.

5.5. Taxes. Unless otherwise stated on the Order Form, Datagain’s fees do not include
any taxes, levies, duties or similar governmental assessments of any nature, including but
not limited to value-added, sales, use or withholding taxes, assessable by any local, state,
provincial, federal or foreign jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"). Client is responsible for
paying all Taxes associated with the purchases hereunder. Datagain is solely responsible
for taxes assessable based on Datagain’s income, property and employees.

6. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

6.1. Reservation of Rights in Services. Datagain alone (and the licensors, where
applicable) shall own all right, title and interest, including all related Intellectual Property
Rights, to the Services, Datagain Technology and Content. This Agreement is not a sale
and does not convey any rights of ownership in or related to the Services, Content,
Datagain Technology or the Intellectual Property Rights owned by Datagain (or our
licensors, where applicable.) The logo, and the product names associated with the
Services are trademarks of Datagain, and no right or license is granted to Client to use
them, except in training materials prepared by Client for internal use.

6.2. Client Data. Subject to the limited rights granted by Client hereunder, Datagain acquires
no right, title or interest from Client under this Agreement in or to Client Data, including
any intellectual property rights therein.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

7.1. Definition of Confidential Information. As used herein, "Confidential
Information" means all confidential or proprietary information disclosed by a party
("Disclosing Party") to the other party ("Receiving Party"), whether orally or in writing,
that is designated in writing as confidential or that reasonably should be understood to be
confidential given the nature of the information and the circumstances of disclosure.

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

Confidential Information shall include Client Data; and Confidential Information of each
party shall include the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all Order Forms, as
well as business and marketing plans, technology and technical information, product
plans and designs, and business processes disclosed by such party. However, Confidential
Information (other than Client Data) shall not include any information that (i) is or
becomes generally known to the public without breach of any obligation owed to the
Disclosing Party, (ii) was known to the Receiving Party prior to its disclosure by the
Disclosing Party without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing Party, (iii) is
received from a third party without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing
Party, (iv) was independently developed by the Receiving Party, or (v) was disclosed
with written permission from the Disclosing Party to Receiving Party.

7.2. Protection of Confidential Information. The Receiving Party shall use the same
degree of care that it uses to protect the confidentiality of its own confidential
information of like kind (but in no event less than reasonable care) (i) not to use any
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party for any purpose outside the scope of this
Agreement, and (ii) except as otherwise authorized by the Disclosing Party in writing, to
limit access to Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to those of its and its
Affiliates’ employees, contractors and agents who need such access for purposes
consistent with this Agreement.

7.3. Compelled Disclosure. The Receiving Party may disclose Confidential Information
of the Disclosing Party if it is compelled by law to do so, provided the Receiving Party
gives the Disclosing Party prior notice of such compelled disclosure (to the extent legally
permitted) and reasonable assistance, at the Disclosing Party's cost, if the Disclosing Party
wishes to contest the disclosure.

8. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS

8.1. Warranties. Datagain warrants throughout the term of this Agreement that (i) We
have validly entered into this Agreement and have the legal power to do so, (ii) the
Services shall perform materially in accordance with the described workflows and
functionalities (iii) the functionality of the Services will not be materially decreased
during a subscription term. For any breach of a warranty above, the exclusive remedy
shall be for Datagain to re-perform the Services or terminate the Agreement as provided
in Section 11 (Term and Termination).

8.2. Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY
MAKES ANY WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED,
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AND EACH PARTY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS
ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TO THE
MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

9. INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Texas Law Applicable to Indemnification. All indemnifications or
limitations of liability or statutes of limitations shall be to the extent authorized
under Texas law and shall follow Texas law without modifying the Client’s
rights.

9.2 No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers. Nothing in this agreement
will be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of
Client, the Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County
Judge.

9.3 Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance. Payment for goods and services
shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice
shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date Client
receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the
service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County
Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any
overdue payments shall be paid by Client in accordance with Texas
Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that
shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of Client’s
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on
September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime
rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the
preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

9.4 Mediation. The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior
to and formal legal action being taken on this Contract.

9.5 Venue and Governing Law. Venue of this contract shall be Williamson
County, Texas, and the law of the State of Texas shall govern

9.6 Right to Audit. DataGain agrees that Client or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy
any and all books, documents, papers and records of DataGain which are
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
DataGain agrees that Client shall have access during normal working hours to
all necessary DataGain facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate
work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this
section. Client shall give DataGain reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

10.1. EXCEPT FOR A PARTY’S BREACH OF SECTION 7 (CONFIDENTIALITY)
OR A PARTY’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS, UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES AND UNDER NO LEGAL THEORY, WHETHER TORT,
CONTRACT, PRODUCT LIABILITY, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL
EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER OR ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY
INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. EXCEPT
AS PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, DATAGAIN WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR
ANY LOSS RESULTING FROM SERVICE USER’S USE OR INABILITY TO USE
DATAGAIN SERVICE EVEN IF DATAGAIN SHALL HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF
THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS. EXCEPT FOR A BREACH OF
CONFIDENTIALITY OR OBLIGATIONS UNDER INDEMNIFICATION, IN NO
EVENT SHALL THE LIABILITY OF EITHER PARTY TO THE OTHER FOR ANY
CLAIM OR ACTION ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED TWO TIMES
(2x) THE AGGREGATE OF ALL AMOUNTS PAID BY Client TO DATAGAIN IN
THE SIX (6) MONTHS PRECEDING INITIATION OF SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION.

11. TERM AND TERMINATION

11.1. Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of one (1) year (“Initial Term”). After the
Initial Term this Agreement shall only renew for successive periods of one year each,
upon advance notification of term end date by Datagain and confirmation of renewal by
Client, at least thirty (30) days prior to end of the then current term.

11.2. Termination for Breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement for breach of
any of the terms of this Agreement by the other party, if such breach is not cured or has
begun to cure by the other party within sixty (60) days of written notice by such party
informing the other party of such breach.

11.3. Termination for Convenience. After the Initial Term, Client may terminate this
Agreement for convenience by providing Datagain a written notice of termination thirty
(30) days prior to the intended date of termination. Client is not entitled to terminate this
Agreement during the Initial Term. After termination under this section, the Client
will only be liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually
received.

11.4. Termination for Datagain Service Discontinuation. Datagain may terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to Client in the event that Datagain discontinues the
Service, provided that (i) Datagain shall issue the notice within one (1) month from the
date of public announcement of such discontinuation of the Service; and (ii) Datagain
shall, upon request by Client, continue to provide the Service to Client for a period up to
1 (one) year from the date of such notice.

11.5. Refund or Payment upon Termination. Upon any termination for cause by
Client, Datagain shall refund any prepaid fees covering the remainder of the term of all
subscriptions as of the date of the breach and such refund will be paid after the effective
date of termination. In no event shall any termination relieve Client of the obligation to

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

pay any undisputed fees payable to Datagain for the period prior to the effective date of
termination.

11.6. Return of Client Data. Upon written request by Client on or before the effective
date of the expiration of the subscriptions or any termination of the Services, Datagain
will make available for download a file containing Client Data in a MS SQL database
formatted file.

11.7. Surviving Provisions. Section 5 (Fees and Payment for Purchased Services), 6
(Proprietary Rights), 7 (Confidentiality), 9 (Indemnification), 10 (Limitation of Liability),
11.5 (Refund or Payment upon Termination), 11.6 (Return of Your Data), 12 (General
Provisions) shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement.

12. GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the attached exhibits, constitutes
and contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement and supersedes any and all prior agreements, negotiations, correspondence,
understandings and communications between the parties, whether written or oral,
concerning the subject matter hereof.

12.2. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed strictly in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware (excluding the
rules governing conflict of laws). Any dispute arising out of or resulting from this
Agreement shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of courts in Delaware to the
exclusion of all other courts.

12.3. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party hereby waives any right to jury trial in
connection with any action or litigation in any way arising out of or related to this
Agreement.

12.4. Relationship of the Parties. The parties are independent contractors. This
Agreement does not create a partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency, fiduciary or
employment relationship between the parties.

12.5. Amendment. No changes, modifications or amendment of any nature made to this
Agreement shall be valid unless evidenced in writing and signed for and on behalf of
both parties by the respective authorized representatives.

12.6. Severability. If any provision in this Agreement is found or held to be invalid or
unenforceable, then the meaning of such provision shall be construed, to the extent
feasible, so as to render the provision enforceable, and if no feasible interpretation would
save such provision, it shall be severed from the remainder of this Agreement which shall

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

remain in full force and effect. However, if the severed provision is essential and
material to the rights or benefits received by either party, the parties shall use their best
efforts to negotiate, in good faith, a substitute, valid and enforceable provision or
Agreement which most nearly approximates to their intent in entering into this
Agreement.

12.7. Assignment. Neither Party shall assign, lease, rent, delegate or otherwise transfer
its licenses and other rights as well as duties under this Agreement except with the prior
written consent of the non-assigning Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Any assignment in derogation of this provision will be void.

12.8. Waiver. Any waiver of any obligation of the either party arising out of this
Agreement shall not take effect unless agreed to in writing by both the parties to this
Agreement.

12.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed, either physically or electronically,
in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered original and constituting one
and the same agreement.

12.10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
construed so as to confer any right, benefit or remedy upon any third party to this
Agreement.

12.11. Interpretation. This Agreement has been independently negotiated between the
parties. Accordingly, no provision of this Agreement shall be construed against one party
by reason of such party being deemed the “author” of the Agreement. Section headings
are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or to be a full and accurate description
of the contents hereof. The terms of this Agreement shall be considered as confidential
information of both the parties and both parties shall be bound to maintain the
confidentiality of the terms of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT TO BE
EXECUTED BY THEIR RESPECTIVE DULY AUTHORIZED OFFICERS AS OF THE DATE

FIRST WRITTEN ABOVE.
Datagain

Client.
Sign: Sign:
Name: Vivek Jha Name:
Title: Director Title:
Date: 12/11/2020 Date:

Dabagairt



Datagairt

709 Mainsail Lane Secaucus, NJ 07094 | (201) 598 1767 | www.datagainservices.com

Order Form No.:

Customer Name:
Project Name:

Customer Contact:
Datagain Contact:
Order Form Date:

Order Form Expiration Date:

DIMS ORDER FORM

12102020113755AM

Williamson County DWI/Drug Court Program

DIMS Software

Jo-Ell Guzman, 512-943-1568, joell.guzman@wilco.org
Vivek Jha, (203) 514-1141, vivek@datagainservices.com

12/10/2020
01/09/2021

ONE TIME COST - Product Setup and Training

Item Description Line Amount
DIMS Configuration System set-up configuration, | $ 0
data migration and
end-user training. Invoice to
be issued upon signing of
this Order Form.
Customization $0
Total One Time Costs | $ 0

YEARLY COST - DIMS Subscription Fees
e Annual Product Subscription License(s).
e Subscription dates (12-month duration),
e Unlimited User Licenses
e Limited for exclusive use by client

Dockets Licensed (Yes/No) Line Amount
Co-occurring Court

DUI Court Yes $1800

Adult Court

Juvenile Court

Mental Health Court

Veteran's Court

Family Drug Court

Tribal Court

Recovery Management

MAT

TOTAL

$1800



about:blank

Datagairt

709 Mainsail Lane Secaucus, NJ 07094 | (201) 598 1767 | www.datagainservices.com

PAYMENT TERMS:
e Payment terms are NET 30
e Yearly Invoice will be issued.

GENERAL NOTES:

e The pricing, discounts and inclusions shown in this Order Form are subject to
revocation if a signed Order Form is not received by Datagain before the close of
business on the Order Expiration Date set forth above.

e Purchased Services shall automatically renew at the end of the current term.

e Annual Subscription shall include software license, Hosting (Amazon Web Services),
Reporting Licenses, Updates, Upgrades, Maintenance and Support as defined in the
Master Subscription Agreement.

e Additional work or services requested, such as customizations, localization tasks or
interoperability with third-party systems, shall be billed as Time & Materials (based on
current-year hourly rate) and will require a separate Work Order.

By signing below, | represent that | am validly authorized to enter into this Order
Form and related Master Subscription Agreement and accept their terms and

conditions.

Datagain Client
Sign: Sign:
Name: Vivek Jha Name:
Title: Director Title:

Date: 12/10/2020 Date:



about:blank

Datagair™

709 Mainsail Lane Secaucus, NJ 07094 | (201) 598 1767 | www.datagainservices.com



about:blank

Commissioners Court - Regular Session 22.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

DataGain
Submitted For:  Randy Barker Submitted By: Mary Watson, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the purchase of Drug Information

Management System (DIMS) software from DataGain for Juvenile Services, in the amount of
$1,800.00 and authorizing execution of the associated documents.

Background

Approval of this item will support the operations of the Juvenile Justice Center. The $1,800.00
fee is for the annual subscription and includes the system set-up, configuration, data migration
and end-user training. Department contacts are Minnie Beteille and John Pelczar. The Funding
Source is 431P.

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |
Attachments

Master Agreement

Order Form
Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 10:51 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:54 AM

Form Started By: Mary Watson Started On: 12/16/2020 02:34 PM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

This MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT FOR DIMS, including all exhibits
hereto (this “Agreement”), is made and entered into on _12/11 , 2020 (“Effective Date”)
by and between Datagain Inc. (“Datagain’) a New Jersey corporation having offices at 1
Creekside Court, Secaucus, New Jersey, USA and __Williamson County (“Client”), a

Governmental Entity having its principal place of business at, 303 MLK
Street, Williamson, Georgetown, Texas, 78626

THIS MASTER SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) GOVERNS
YOUR ACQUISITION AND USE OF OUR SERVICES.

BY EXECUTING AN ORDER FORM THAT REFERENCES THIS AGREEMENT,
YOU AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. IF YOU ARE ENTERING
INTO THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF A COMPANY OR OTHER LEGAL
ENTITY, YOU REPRESENT THAT YOU HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO BIND SUCH
ENTITY AND ITS AFFILIATES TO THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

Where necessary, Datagain or Client is individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively
as “Parties” in this Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties intending to be legally bound agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS

"Affiliate" means any entity which directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with the subject entity. "Control," for purposes of this definition, means direct or
indirect ownership or control of more than 50% of the voting interests of the subject entity.

“Datagain Technology" means all of the proprietary technology (including software, hardware,
products, processes, algorithms, user interfaces, APIs, know-how, techniques, designs and other
tangible or intangible technical material or information) made available to Client by Datagain in
providing the Services;

"Services" means the products and services offered by Datagain and made available to Client via
the customer login link and/or other web pages designated by Datagain.

"Content" means the documents, software, products and services contained or made available to
Client in the course of using the Services that does not contain any Client information or data;
“Content” exclude Non-Datagain Applications and content.

"Non-Datagain Applications and Content" means online and offline software products,
services and content that are provided by entities or individuals other than Datagain and are
clearly identified as such, and that interoperate with the Services with Datagain’s written consent.

"Order Form" means the documents for placing orders hereunder, which are entered into

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

between Client and Datagain from time to time. Order Form(s) shall be deemed incorporated
herein by reference.

"Purchased Services" means Services that Client purchases under an Order Form, as
distinguished from those provided pursuant to a free trial.

"Malicious Code" means viruses, worms, time bombs, Trojan horses and other harmful or
malicious code, files, scripts, agents or programs.

"Users" means individuals who are authorized by Client to use the Services, for whom
subscriptions to the Services have been ordered, and who have been supplied user identifications
and passwords by Client (or by Datagain at Client request). Users include Client employees,
consultants, contractors and agents, provided however, Datagain’s competitors or vendors of
complimentary products are not Users and may not access or view the Services without our
express written consent.

“Client Data" means all electronic data or information submitted by Client to the Purchased
Services.

2. SERVICES

2.1. Provision of Services. Datagain shall make the Services available to Client pursuant
to this Agreement and the relevant Order Forms during a subscription term. Client
purchases hereunder are neither contingent on the delivery of any future functionality or
features nor dependent on any oral or written public comments made by Datagain
regarding future functionality or features. This does not include browser or device
compatibility related upgrades and fixes.

2.2. User Subscriptions. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Order Form, (i)
Services are purchased as User subscriptions and may be accessed by no more than the
specified number of Users as described in the Order Form(s), (ii) additional User
subscriptions may be added during the applicable subscription term at the same pricing as
that for the pre-existing subscriptions thereunder, prorated for the remainder of the
subscription term in effect at the time the additional User subscriptions are added, and
(iii) the added User subscriptions shall terminate on the same date as the pre-existing
subscriptions. User subscriptions are for designated Users only and cannot be shared or
used by more than one User but may be reassigned to new Users replacing former Users
who no longer require ongoing use of the Services.

3. USE OF THE SERVICES

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

3.1. License Grant. Datagain hereby grant’s Client a non-exclusive, non-transferable,
worldwide right to use the Services as described on the relevant Order Form(s), solely for
Client’s internal business purposes, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. All rights not expressly granted to Client are reserved by Datagain.

3.2. Restrictions. Client shall not permit third parties, without Datagain’s express
written consent, (i) license, sublicense, sell, resell, transfer, assign, distribute or otherwise
commercially exploit or make available to any third party the Services or the Content in
any way for any reason; (i) modify or make derivative works based upon the Services,
Datagain Technology or the Content; or (iii) reverse engineer or access the Services in
order to (a) build a complimentary or competitive product or service, (b) build a product
using similar ideas, features, functions or graphics of the Services, or (c) copy any ideas,
features, functions or graphics of the Services. User licenses cannot be shared or used by
more than one individual User but may be reassigned from time to time to new Users
who are replacing former Users who have terminated employment or otherwise changed
job status or function and no longer use the Services. A violation of this paragraph 3.2
shall be considered a material breach of the contract.

3.3. Our Responsibilities. Datagain shall: (i) provide basic support for the Services to
Client including a) phone and email technical support, b) user guides and FAQs c)
dedicated account manager (ii) use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Services
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, except for (a) planned downtime of which
Datagain shall give Client written notice, or (b) any unavailability of the Services caused
by circumstances beyond Datagain’s reasonable control, (iii) provide the Services only
in accordance with applicable laws and government regulations, and (iv) to comply in all
respects with the applicable laws, codes, rules, regulations and decisions of any
legislative, administrative or judicial body exercising any power or jurisdiction over any
Services described in this Agreement. The Services may be subject to limitations, delays,
and other problems inherent in the use of the internet and electronic communications.

3.4. Protection of Client Data. Datagain shall maintain, or cause to be maintained,
commercially reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical, and technical
safeguards for protection of the security, confidentiality, and integrity of Client Data
stored with Datagain’s hosting vendor. We shall not (a) modify Client’s Data, (b)
disclose, provide, rent, or sell Client’s Data except as compelled by law in accordance
with Section 7.3 (Compelled Disclosure) or as expressly permitted in writing by Client,
or (¢) access Client Data except to provide the Services and prevent or address service or
technical problems, or at Client’s request in connection with customer support matters.

3.5. Data Storage. Datagain will determine the locations of the data centers in which
Client Data will be stored and accessible by Client Users.

3.6. Client Responsibilities. Client shall (i) be responsible for Users’ compliance with

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

this Agreement, (ii) be responsible for the accuracy, quality and legality of Client’s Data
and of the means by which Client acquired the Data, (iii) if applicable to Client, maintain
processes, controls and procedures to ensure Client Users compliance with statutory and
regulatory requirements, (iv) prevent unauthorized access to or use of the Services, and
notify Datagain promptly of any such unauthorized access or use of any password or
account or any other breach of security, (v) use the Services only in accordance with the
applicable laws and government regulations, (vi) provide all hardware, systems software
and third party software for Services that run on Client’s servers, and (vii) provide
desktop computers and related software to operate the Services. Client shall not (a) use
the Services to store or transmit infringing, libelous, or otherwise unlawful or tortious
material, or to store or transmit material in violation of third-party privacy rights, (d) use
the Services to store or transmit Malicious Code, (¢) interfere with or disrupt the integrity
or performance of the Services or third-party data contained therein, or (f) attempt to gain
unauthorized access to the Services or their related systems or networks. Client is
responsible for all activities undertaken by Client Users which result in unauthorized
access to Client data.

3.7. Storage Limitations. There is no limit on the amount of data or documents Client
may store in the Services.

4. NON-DATAGAIN APPLICATIONS AND CONTENT

4.1. Acquisition of Non-Datagain Applications and Content. Datagain may from time
to time make available to Client third-party products or services, including but not limited
to Non-Datagain Applications and Content, training and other consulting services. In no
event shall Client be obligated to purchase any third-party products or services available
from Datagain. Any acquisition by Client of such Non-Datagain Applications or Content,
and any exchange of data between Client and any Non-Datagain provider, is solely
between Client and the applicable Non-Datagain provider of such applications or content.
Datagain does not warrant or support Non-Datagain Applications or Content, whether or
not they are designated by Datagain as “certified” or otherwise, except as explicitly
specified in an Order Form. Datagain has the authority to utilize and integrate other third
party software into Datagain’s product. No purchase of Non-Datagain Applications or
Content is required to use the Services except a supported computing device, operating
system, compliant web browser and Internet connection.

5. FEES AND PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

5.1. Fees. Client shall pay all undisputed fees specified in all Order Forms hereunder.
Except as otherwise specified herein or in an Order Form, (i) fees are based on services
purchased and not actual usage, (ii) payment obligations are non-cancelable and fees paid
are non-refundable.

5.2. Invoicing and Payment. Client will provide Datagain with a valid purchase order

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

or alternative purchase confirmation document which is reasonably acceptable to
Datagain. Datagain will issue Invoices in accordance with the relevant Order Form.
Unless otherwise stated in the Order Form, invoiced charges are due Net 30 days from
the invoice date. Client is responsible for providing complete and accurate billing and
contact information and notifying of any changes.

5.3. Suspension of Service. If any amount owed by Client under this or any other
agreement for Datagain’s services is sixty (60) or more days overdue, Datagain may
suspend the Services until such amounts are paid in full. Datagain will give at least
fifteen (15) days’ prior notice that the account is overdue before suspending services.

5.4. Payment Disputes. Datagain shall not exercise the rights under Section 5.3
(Suspension of Service) if Client is disputing the applicable charges reasonably and in
good faith and are cooperating diligently to resolve the dispute.

5.5. Taxes. Unless otherwise stated on the Order Form, Datagain’s fees do not include
any taxes, levies, duties or similar governmental assessments of any nature, including but
not limited to value-added, sales, use or withholding taxes, assessable by any local, state,
provincial, federal or foreign jurisdiction (collectively, "Taxes"). Client is responsible for
paying all Taxes associated with the purchases hereunder. Datagain is solely responsible
for taxes assessable based on Datagain’s income, property and employees.

6. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

6.1. Reservation of Rights in Services. Datagain alone (and the licensors, where
applicable) shall own all right, title and interest, including all related Intellectual Property
Rights, to the Services, Datagain Technology and Content. This Agreement is not a sale
and does not convey any rights of ownership in or related to the Services, Content,
Datagain Technology or the Intellectual Property Rights owned by Datagain (or our
licensors, where applicable.) The logo, and the product names associated with the
Services are trademarks of Datagain, and no right or license is granted to Client to use
them, except in training materials prepared by Client for internal use.

6.2. Client Data. Subject to the limited rights granted by Client hereunder, Datagain acquires
no right, title or interest from Client under this Agreement in or to Client Data, including
any intellectual property rights therein.

7. CONFIDENTIALITY

7.1. Definition of Confidential Information. As used herein, "Confidential
Information" means all confidential or proprietary information disclosed by a party
("Disclosing Party") to the other party ("Receiving Party"), whether orally or in writing,
that is designated in writing as confidential or that reasonably should be understood to be
confidential given the nature of the information and the circumstances of disclosure.

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

Confidential Information shall include Client Data; and Confidential Information of each
party shall include the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all Order Forms, as
well as business and marketing plans, technology and technical information, product
plans and designs, and business processes disclosed by such party. However, Confidential
Information (other than Client Data) shall not include any information that (i) is or
becomes generally known to the public without breach of any obligation owed to the
Disclosing Party, (ii) was known to the Receiving Party prior to its disclosure by the
Disclosing Party without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing Party, (iii) is
received from a third party without breach of any obligation owed to the Disclosing
Party, (iv) was independently developed by the Receiving Party, or (v) was disclosed
with written permission from the Disclosing Party to Receiving Party.

7.2. Protection of Confidential Information. The Receiving Party shall use the same
degree of care that it uses to protect the confidentiality of its own confidential
information of like kind (but in no event less than reasonable care) (i) not to use any
Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party for any purpose outside the scope of this
Agreement, and (ii) except as otherwise authorized by the Disclosing Party in writing, to
limit access to Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to those of its and its
Affiliates’ employees, contractors and agents who need such access for purposes
consistent with this Agreement.

7.3. Compelled Disclosure. The Receiving Party may disclose Confidential Information
of the Disclosing Party if it is compelled by law to do so, provided the Receiving Party
gives the Disclosing Party prior notice of such compelled disclosure (to the extent legally
permitted) and reasonable assistance, at the Disclosing Party's cost, if the Disclosing Party
wishes to contest the disclosure.

8. WARRANTIES AND DISCLAIMERS

8.1. Warranties. Datagain warrants throughout the term of this Agreement that (i) We
have validly entered into this Agreement and have the legal power to do so, (ii) the
Services shall perform materially in accordance with the described workflows and
functionalities (iii) the functionality of the Services will not be materially decreased
during a subscription term. For any breach of a warranty above, the exclusive remedy
shall be for Datagain to re-perform the Services or terminate the Agreement as provided
in Section 11 (Term and Termination).

8.2. Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY
MAKES ANY WARRANTIES OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED,
STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, AND EACH PARTY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS
ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, TO THE
MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

9. INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Texas Law Applicable to Indemnification. All indemnifications or
limitations of liability or statutes of limitations shall be to the extent authorized
under Texas law and shall follow Texas law without modifying the Client’s
rights.

9.2 No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity or Powers. Nothing in this agreement
will be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity or powers of
Client, the Williamson County Commissioners Court, or the Williamson County
Judge.

9.3 Texas Prompt Payment Act Compliance. Payment for goods and services
shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code. An invoice
shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date Client
receives the goods under the contract; (2) the date the performance of the
service under the contract is completed; or (3) the date the Williamson County
Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any
overdue payments shall be paid by Client in accordance with Texas
Government Code Section 2251.025. More specifically, the rate of interest that
shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of Client’s
fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on
September 1 shall be equal to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime
rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of July of the
preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.

9.4 Mediation. The parties agree to use mediation for dispute resolution prior
to and formal legal action being taken on this Contract.

9.5 Venue and Governing Law. Venue of this contract shall be Williamson
County, Texas, and the law of the State of Texas shall govern

9.6 Right to Audit. DataGain agrees that Client or its duly authorized
representatives shall, until the expiration of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement, have access to and the right to examine and photocopy
any and all books, documents, papers and records of DataGain which are
directly pertinent to the services to be performed under this Agreement for the
purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
DataGain agrees that Client shall have access during normal working hours to
all necessary DataGain facilities and shall be provided adequate and appropriate
work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of this
section. Client shall give DataGain reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

10. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

10.1. EXCEPT FOR A PARTY’S BREACH OF SECTION 7 (CONFIDENTIALITY)
OR A PARTY’S INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS, UNDER NO
CIRCUMSTANCES AND UNDER NO LEGAL THEORY, WHETHER TORT,
CONTRACT, PRODUCT LIABILITY, NEGLIGENCE, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL
EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER OR ANY THIRD PARTY FOR ANY
INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. EXCEPT
AS PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, DATAGAIN WILL NOT BE LIABLE FOR
ANY LOSS RESULTING FROM SERVICE USER’S USE OR INABILITY TO USE
DATAGAIN SERVICE EVEN IF DATAGAIN SHALL HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF
THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH LOSS. EXCEPT FOR A BREACH OF
CONFIDENTIALITY OR OBLIGATIONS UNDER INDEMNIFICATION, IN NO
EVENT SHALL THE LIABILITY OF EITHER PARTY TO THE OTHER FOR ANY
CLAIM OR ACTION ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED TWO TIMES
(2x) THE AGGREGATE OF ALL AMOUNTS PAID BY Client TO DATAGAIN IN
THE SIX (6) MONTHS PRECEDING INITIATION OF SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION.

11. TERM AND TERMINATION

11.1. Term of Agreement. The Term of this Agreement shall commence as of the
Effective Date and shall continue for a period of one (1) year (“Initial Term”). After the
Initial Term this Agreement shall only renew for successive periods of one year each,
upon advance notification of term end date by Datagain and confirmation of renewal by
Client, at least thirty (30) days prior to end of the then current term.

11.2. Termination for Breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement for breach of
any of the terms of this Agreement by the other party, if such breach is not cured or has
begun to cure by the other party within sixty (60) days of written notice by such party
informing the other party of such breach.

11.3. Termination for Convenience. After the Initial Term, Client may terminate this
Agreement for convenience by providing Datagain a written notice of termination thirty
(30) days prior to the intended date of termination. Client is not entitled to terminate this
Agreement during the Initial Term. After termination under this section, the Client
will only be liable for its pro rata share of services rendered and goods actually
received.

11.4. Termination for Datagain Service Discontinuation. Datagain may terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to Client in the event that Datagain discontinues the
Service, provided that (i) Datagain shall issue the notice within one (1) month from the
date of public announcement of such discontinuation of the Service; and (ii) Datagain
shall, upon request by Client, continue to provide the Service to Client for a period up to
1 (one) year from the date of such notice.

11.5. Refund or Payment upon Termination. Upon any termination for cause by
Client, Datagain shall refund any prepaid fees covering the remainder of the term of all
subscriptions as of the date of the breach and such refund will be paid after the effective
date of termination. In no event shall any termination relieve Client of the obligation to

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

pay any undisputed fees payable to Datagain for the period prior to the effective date of
termination.

11.6. Return of Client Data. Upon written request by Client on or before the effective
date of the expiration of the subscriptions or any termination of the Services, Datagain
will make available for download a file containing Client Data in a MS SQL database
formatted file.

11.7. Surviving Provisions. Section 5 (Fees and Payment for Purchased Services), 6
(Proprietary Rights), 7 (Confidentiality), 9 (Indemnification), 10 (Limitation of Liability),
11.5 (Refund or Payment upon Termination), 11.6 (Return of Your Data), 12 (General
Provisions) shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement.

12. GENERAL PROVISIONS

12.1. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the attached exhibits, constitutes
and contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement and supersedes any and all prior agreements, negotiations, correspondence,
understandings and communications between the parties, whether written or oral,
concerning the subject matter hereof.

12.2. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed strictly in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware (excluding the
rules governing conflict of laws). Any dispute arising out of or resulting from this
Agreement shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of courts in Delaware to the
exclusion of all other courts.

12.3. Waiver of Jury Trial. Each party hereby waives any right to jury trial in
connection with any action or litigation in any way arising out of or related to this
Agreement.

12.4. Relationship of the Parties. The parties are independent contractors. This
Agreement does not create a partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency, fiduciary or
employment relationship between the parties.

12.5. Amendment. No changes, modifications or amendment of any nature made to this
Agreement shall be valid unless evidenced in writing and signed for and on behalf of
both parties by the respective authorized representatives.

12.6. Severability. If any provision in this Agreement is found or held to be invalid or
unenforceable, then the meaning of such provision shall be construed, to the extent
feasible, so as to render the provision enforceable, and if no feasible interpretation would
save such provision, it shall be severed from the remainder of this Agreement which shall

Dabagairt



Dl mS Master Service Agreement

remain in full force and effect. However, if the severed provision is essential and
material to the rights or benefits received by either party, the parties shall use their best
efforts to negotiate, in good faith, a substitute, valid and enforceable provision or
Agreement which most nearly approximates to their intent in entering into this
Agreement.

12.7. Assignment. Neither Party shall assign, lease, rent, delegate or otherwise transfer
its licenses and other rights as well as duties under this Agreement except with the prior
written consent of the non-assigning Party, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Any assignment in derogation of this provision will be void.

12.8. Waiver. Any waiver of any obligation of the either party arising out of this
Agreement shall not take effect unless agreed to in writing by both the parties to this
Agreement.

12.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed, either physically or electronically,
in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered original and constituting one
and the same agreement.

12.10. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
construed so as to confer any right, benefit or remedy upon any third party to this
Agreement.

12.11. Interpretation. This Agreement has been independently negotiated between the
parties. Accordingly, no provision of this Agreement shall be construed against one party
by reason of such party being deemed the “author” of the Agreement. Section headings
are not to be considered a part of this Agreement or to be a full and accurate description
of the contents hereof. The terms of this Agreement shall be considered as confidential
information of both the parties and both parties shall be bound to maintain the
confidentiality of the terms of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED THIS AGREEMENT TO BE
EXECUTED BY THEIR RESPECTIVE DULY AUTHORIZED OFFICERS AS OF THE DATE

FIRST WRITTEN ABOVE.
Datagain

Client.
Sign: Sign:
Name: Vivek Jha Name:
Title:  Director Title:
Date:  12/11/2020 Date:

Dabagairt



Datagair’

709 Mainsail Lane Secaucus, NJ 07094 | (201) 598 1767 | www.datagainservices.com

DIMS ORDER FORM

Order Form No.: 12102020111755AM

Customer Name: Transformative Justice

Project Name: DIMS Software

Customer Contact: John Pelczar, 512.943.3204, JPelczar@wilco.org
Datagain Contact: Vivek Jha, (203) 514-1141, vivek@datagainservices.com
Order Form Date: 12/10/2020

Order Form Expiration Date: (01/09/2021

ONE TIME COST - Product Setup and Training

Item Description Line Amount

DIMS Configuration System set-up configuration, | $ 0
data migration and end-user
training. Invoice to be issued
upon signing of this Order
Form.

Customization $0

Total One Time Costs | $ 0

YEARLY COST - DIMS Subscription Fees °
Annual Product Subscription License(s).

» Subscription dates (12-month duration),

* Unlimited User Licenses

« Limited for exclusive use by client

Dockets Licensed (Yes/No) Line Amount

Co-occurring Court

DUI Court Yes $1800

Adult Court Yes

Juvenile Court

Mental Health Court Yes

Veteran's Court

Family Drug Court




Datagair’

709 Mainsail Lane Secaucus, NJ 07094 | (201) 598 1767 | www.datagainservices.com

Tribal Court

Recovery Management

MAT

TOTAL $1800

PAYMENT TERMS:

Payment terms are NET 30 « Yearly Invoice will be issued.

GENERAL NOTES:

The pricing, discounts and inclusions shown in this Order Form are subject to
revocation if a signed Order Form is not received by Datagain before the close of
business on the Order Expiration Date set forth above.

Purchased Services shall automatically renew at the end of the current term.

Annual Subscription shall include software license, Hosting (Amazon Web Services),
Reporting Licenses, Updates, Upgrades, Maintenance and Support as defined in the
Master Subscription Agreement.

Additional work or services requested, such as customizations, localization tasks or
interoperability with third-party systems, shall be billed as Time & Materials (based on
current-year hourly rate) and will require a separate Work Order.

By signing below, | represent that | am validly authorized to enter into this Order Form
and related Master Subscription Agreement and accept their terms and conditions.

Datagain Client
Sign: Sign:
Name: Vivek Jha Name:
Title: Director Title:
Date: 12/10/2020 Date:




Datagairt

709 Mainsail Lane Secaucus, NJ 07094 | (201) 598 1767 | www.datagainservices.com




Commissioners Court - Regular Session 23.
Meeting Date: 12/22/2020

United Healthcare Services, Inc Amendment 4 Financial Renewal Agreement

Submitted For:  Randy Barker Submitted By: Dianne West, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing

Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda ltem

Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the United Healthcare Services,
Inc., Amendment 4, effective January 1, 2021, for the same terms and conditions as the existing
contract, with the exception of items stated in the Amendment No. 4, Financial Renewal and
Terms.

Background

This is Amendment No. 4 for the contract 911463 between United Healthcare Services, Inc. and
Williamson County. The Williamson County original bid/contract is 1704-144. The department
point of contact is Shelley Loughrey, Director of Benefits. The FY21 budget information is
shown below:

01.0885.0885.004054 — Admin Cost, Health Insurance, 2021 Budget - $1,072,678.00
01.0885.0885.004056 — Admin Cost, Dental, 2021 Budget - $60,980.00

01.0885.0885.004059 — Admin Cost, Flex Plan, 2021 Budget - $35,000.00
01.0885.0885.004060 — Admin Cost, Cobra Administration - $12,000.00

Fiscal Impact

| From/To (| Acct No. (| Description [l Amount |

Attachments
1704-144 UHC executed contract
United Healthcare Services, Inc. Amendment No. 1, 1.1.2018
United Healthcare Services, Inc. Financial Renewal Amendment 1.1.2019
United Healthcare Services, Inc. Amendment No. 3 - 1.1.2020
United Healthcare Services, Inc. Amendment No. 4 - 1.1.2021

Form Review

Inbox Reviewed By Date

Purchasing (Originator) Randy Barker 12/17/2020 10:32 AM

County Judge Exec Asst. Andrea Schiele 12/17/2020 11:23 AM

Form Started By: Dianne West Started On: 12/16/2020 09:47 AM

Final Approval Date: 12/17/2020



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Administrative Services Agreement ("Agreement") between United HealthCare Services, Inc. (“United” in this
Agreement) and Williamson County (“Customer” in this Agreement) is effective January 1, 2018 (“Effective
Date™). This Agreement covers the services United is providing to Customer, either directly or in conjunction with
one of United’s affiliates, for use with Customer’s Self-Funded employee benefit plan and apply to claims for Plan

benefits that are incurred on or after the Effective Date.

United HealthCare Services, Inc. identifies this arrangement as Contract No.: 911463

By signing below, each party agrees to the terms of this Agreement.

Williamson County
901 S Austin Avenue
Georgetown, TX 78626

.

By: //Z’ P > zé/%

Authorized Signature

Print Name: '//r'// /} K/ﬁ 7l

Print Title: /b/ﬂ 7 Jl/}/v/

Date: &~ 77~ Te/7

United HealthCare Services, Inc.
185 Asylum Street
Hartford, CT 06103-3408

By:

Authorized Signature

-

Print Name: mu;‘ ] YU (R '| Ck ;
Print Title: Rcsmocu_o«mﬂaid'_m&@

Date: (.Q ‘l \S \IQOH

ASA 2Q 2016

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Table of Contents

Section 1 — DefTnitiONS o uesessse s is oimim b s R Ao T e ST S sAekeS s avirepe il
Section 2 — Customer ReSPONSIDIITIES .............. oo i s e i wiswsai i g 2
SECHON 3 —FEES oot cr oo om0 S S T 0 S S A AL 3
Section 4 — Records, INformation, AUIES ...........vviieiiiiiieir oo ie st s e eseeias e seiies e s s e eiiias e sisses e
Section 5 — Taxes And Assessments .......... T T R e R e ek 5
Section 6 — INdeMNIfICALION. .. ..ocviiririe it e se e e e s s snenssnenseneen O
Section 7 — Plan Benefits LitIZAtION . ...ccivuvvrvirmieiiniiisieesei s sisesnssessssssssesisnssnssesssssasssssssesessees 0
Section 8 — Mediation...........c..coovevvees cossnssussssssssisssunsissasnnsansse o oisendensonsen e Easas sesFEs oA e s esTs RS LERSEI A SRS SROEOLENES |
Section 9 — TErMINALION .....ovvivieiierierririeee et e 0 s40a s v 402000 b0 a8 s me g st e 7
Section 10 — MISCEILANEBOUS .........eireeieiviiiiiiieiine s s ees e s b e s e s ih bbbt n e s bb s ebs b e e b e e ebeene 7
EXHIBIT A — STATEMENT OF WORK Liicusiiiiiiiiivi i minbsiisiiaisiviiiivtaaimmaiisim e 9
EXHIBIT B —FEES .....cooiorivenrovennonoon  Gosdeaivs seaid i o sies o hd bt s s v ve s 27
EXHIBIT C - PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR HEALTH BENEFITS ........coovimimmminnnn, 32

EXHIBIT D — BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT ..o o 43

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Section 1 — Definitions

When these terms are capitalized in the Agreement they have the meanings set forth below. The words may be
singular or plural.

Bank Account: Bank Account maintained for the payment of Plan benefits, expenses, fees and other Customer
financial obligations.

Employee: A current or former employee of Customer or its affiliated employer.
IRC: The United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time.
IRS: The United States Internal Revenue Service.

Network: The group of Network Providers United makes available to the Plan who have entered into or are
governed by contractual arrangements under which they agree to provide health care services to Participants and
accept negotiated fees for these services.

Network Pharmacy: A retail pharmacy, mail order pharmacy, specialty pharmacy or other facility that is duly
licensed to operate as a pharmacy at its location and to dispense prescription drugs to Participants, and has entered
into a Network Pharmacy agreement. An affiliate of United, in its capacity as a mail order pharmacy or specialty
Pharmacy, is a Network Pharmacy of the Customer.

Network Provider: The physician, or medical professional or facility which participates in a Network. A provider
is only a Network Provider if they are participating in a Network at the time services are rendered to the Plan
Participant.

Overpayments: Payments that exceed the amount payable under the Plan. This term does not include
overpayments caused by untimely or inaccurate eligibility information.

Participant: Employee or dependent who is covered by the Plan.

PHI: Any information United receives or provides on behalf of the Plan which is considered Protected Health
Information as the term is defined in the privacy regulations of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act of 1996.

Plan: The plan to which this Agreement applies, but only with respect to those provisions of the plan relating to the
Self-Funded health benefits United is administering, as described in the Summary Plan Description.

Plan Administrator: The current or succeeding person, committee, partnership, or other entity designated the Plan
Administrator who is generally responsible for the Plan’s operation.

Proprietary Business Information: Nonpublic information, trade secrets, and other data including, but not limited
to, sales and marketing information, management systems, strategic plans and other information about the disclosing
party’s business, industry, products and services, plans, specifications, operation methods, pricing, costs, techniques,
manuals, know-how and other intellectual property, in written, oral, electronic or other tangible form, provided by
one party to another or its representative; and all information, documents, technology, products, and services
containing or derived from Proprietary Business Information which was or may have been transmitted, given or
made available to or viewed by one party or another in the course of the receiving party’s relationship. United’s
Proprietary Business Information shall include, but not be limited to, discounts and other financial provisions related
to United’s contracted healthcare providers and claims data from which those financial provisions can be derived
and financial provisions related to prescription drug products covered under the medical benefit, the Prescription
Drug List, reimbursement rates, compensation arrangements, and all other financial provisions related to the
pharmacy benefits contained in this Agreement. While the Prescription Drug List is considered United’s Proprietary
Business Information, it may be disclosed in the limited circumstances outlined in this Agreement. This information
is collectively known as “United’s Financial PBI”.

1

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Rebate: Any discount, rebate administration fees, price concession or other direct or indirect remuneration United
receives from a drug manufacturer under a rebate agreement that is contingent upon and related directly to
Participant use of a prescription drug under the Plan's pharmacy benefit or the medical benefit during the Term.
Rebate does not include any discount, price concession or other direct or indirect remuneration United receives from
a drug manufacturer for direct purchase of a prescription drug.

Self-Fund or Self-Funded: Means that Customer, on behalf of the Plan, has the sole responsibility to pay, and
provide funds, to pay for all Plan benefits. United has no liability or responsibility to provide these funds. This is
true even if United or its affiliates provides stop loss insurance to Customer.

Summary Plan Description or SPD: The document(s) Customer provides to Plan Participants describing the terms
and conditions of coverage offered under the Plan.

Systems: Means the systems United owns or makes available to Customer to facilitate the transfer of information in
connection with this Agreement.

Tax or Taxes: A charge imposed, assessed or levied by any federal, state, local or other governmental entity.

Term or Term of the Agreement: The period of twelve (12) months commencing on the Effective Date and
automatically continuing for additional 12-month periods until the Agreement is terminated.

Following the Effective Date and after Customer has provided three (3) months’ worth of funds for the processing of
claims and/or the payment of administrative fees, this Agreement is deemed executed by the parties.

Urgent Care Claims: A claim for medical services and supplies which meets ERISA’s definition of Urgent Care
Claim.

Section 2 — Customer Responsibilities

Section 2.1 Responsibility for the Plan. United is not the Plan Administrator of the Plan. Any references in this
Agreement to United “administering the Plan” are descriptive only and do not confer upon United anything beyond
certain agreed upon claim administration duties. Except to the extent this Agreement specifically requires United to
have the fiduciary responsibility for a Plan administrative function, Customer accepts total responsibility for the
Plan for purposes of this Agreement including its benefit design, the legal sufficiency and distribution of SPDs, and
compliance with any laws that apply to Customer or the Plan, whether or not Customer or someone Customer
designates is the Plan Administrator. The Customer represents and warrants that the Plan has the authority to pay
fees due under this Agreement from Plan assets.

Section 2.2 Plan Consistent with the Agreement. Customer represents that Plan documents, including the
Summary Plan Description as described in Exhibit A — Statement of Work, are consistent with this Agreement.
Nevertheless, before distributing any communications describing Plan benefits or provisions to Participants or third
parties, Customer will provide United with such communications which refer to United or United’s services prior to
distributing these materials to Employees or third parties. Customer will amend them if United reasonably
determines that references to United are not accurate, or any Plan provision is not consistent with this Agreement or
the services that United is providing.

Section 2.3 Plan Changes. Customer must provide United with notice of any changes to the Plan and/or Summary
Plan Description within a reasonable period of time prior to the effective date of the change to allow United to
determine if such change will alter the services United provides under this Agreement. Any change in the services to
be provided by United under this Agreement which would be caused by any aforementioned changes must be
mutually agreed to in writing prior to implementation of such change. United will notify Customer if (i) the change
increases United’s cost of providing services under this Agreement or (ii) United is reasonably unable to implement
or administer the change. If the parties cannot agree to a new fee within (30) thirty days of the notice of the new fee
or if United notifies Customer that United is unable to reasonably implement or administer the change, United shall
have no obligation to implement or administer the change, and Customer may terminate this Agreement upon (60)
sixty days written notice.

2
Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Section 2.4 Affiliated Employers. Customer represents that together Customer and any of its affiliates covered
under the Plan make up a single “controlled group” as defined by the IRC. Customer agrees to provide United with a
list of Customer’s affiliates covered under the Plan upon request,

Section 2.5 Information Customer Provides to United. Customer will tell United which of Customer’s
Employees, their dependents and/or other persons are Participants. This information must be accurate and provided
to United in a timely manner. United will accept eligibility data from Customer in the format described in Exhibit A
— Statement of Work. Customer will notify United of any change to this information as soon as reasonably possible.

United will be entitled to rely on the most current information in United’s possession regarding eligibility of
Participants in paying Plan benefits and providing other services under this Agreement. United will not be required
to process or reprocess claims, but if United agrees to do so, additional fees may apply.

United shall be entitled to rely upon any written or oral communication from Customer, its designated employees,
agents or authorized representatives.

Section 2.6 Notices to Participants. Customer will give Participants the information and documents they need to
obtain benefits under the Plan within a reasonable period of time before coverage begins. In the event this
Agreement is discontinued, Customer will notify all Participants that the services United is providing under this
Agreement are discontinued.

Section 2.7 Escheat. Customer is solely responsible for complying with all applicable abandoned property or
escheat laws, making any required payments, and filing any required reports.

Section 3 — Fees

Section 3.1 Fees. Customer will pay fees to United as compensation for the services provided by United. In addition
to the fees specified in Exhibit B, Customer must also pay United any additional fee that is authorized by a provision
elsewhere in this Agreement or is otherwise agreed to by the parties.

Section 3.2 Changes in Fees. United can change the fees on each Term anniversary (“Renewal Term”), subject to
the provisions of Exhibit B. United will provide Customer with thirty (30) days prior written notice of the revised
fees for subsequent Renewal Terms. Any such fee change will become effective on the later of the first day of the
new Renewal Term or thirty (30) days after United provides Customer with written notice of the new fees. United
will provide Customer with a new Exhibit B that will replace the existing Exhibit B for the new Renewal Term.

United also can change the fees (i) any time there are changes made to this Agreement or the Plan, which affect the
fees including the termination of the Shared Savings, (ii) when there are changes in laws or regulations which affect
or are related to the services United is providing, or will be required to provide, under this Agreement, including the
Taxes and fees noted in Section 5 Taxes And Assessments (iii) if the number of Employees covered by the Plan or
any Plan option changes by ten percent (10%) or more or (iv) if the average contract size, defined as the total
number of enrolled Participants divided by the total number of enrolled Employees, varies by 10% or more from the
assumed average contract size set forth in Exhibit B. Any new fee required by such change will be effective as of
the date the changes occur, even if that date is retroactive.

If Customer does not agree to any change in fees, Customer may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days
written notice after Customer receives written notice of the new fees. Customer must still pay any amounts due for
the periods during which the Agreement is in effect.

Section 3.3 Due Dates, Payments, and Penalties. For the Standard Medical Service Fees described in Exhibit B,
United will provide Customer with an on-line invoice in advance of the first of each month, typically no later than
the 18™ of each month. The Due Date for payment of the invoiced amounts is on the first day of the next full
calendar month. Such invoices are provided on an eligibility-based format, and therefore payment must be made as
billed (no adjustments are allowed to the invoice).

3

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Late Payment: If amounts owed are not paid within in accordance with the timing specified in Texas Government
Code Chapter 2251 (“Grace Period”), Customer will pay United interest on these amounts in accordance with Texas
Government Code Chapter 2251.

Section 3.4 Reconciliation. For each Renewal Term, United will reconcile the total amounts Customer paid with
the total amounts Customer owed. If the reconciliation indicates that United owes Customer money, Customer’s
next fee invoice will be credited. If the reconciliation indicates that Customer owes United money, United will
invoice Customer for the amount due. The Due Date for these amounts is the first day of the next calendar month.
Customer will pay United, within thirty (30) days of the due date, the amounts that Customer owes United. For
payments made after this thirty (30) day period, Customer will pay United interest on these amounts at the interest
tate that United charges to its other self-funded customers.

If the Agreement is terminated, United will pay Customer the amount owed within thirty (30) days after United
performs a final reconciliation. If the final reconciliation indicates that Customer owes United money, Customer will
pay United within thirty (30) days after receiving notice of the amount owed.

For payments Customer makes after thirty (30) days of receiving notice of the amounts that Customer owes United,
United will charge interest at the interest rate that United charge its other self-funded customers.

Section 4 — Records, Information, Audits

Section 4.1 Records. United will keep records relating to the services it provides under this Agreement for as long
as United is required to do so by law.

Section 4.2 Proprietary Business Information. Each party will limit the use of the other's Proprietary Business
Information to only the information required to administer the Plan, to perform under this Agreement, or as
otherwise permitted under this Agreement. Neither party will disclose the other's Proprietary Business Information
to any person or entity other than to the disclosing party's employees, subcontractors, or authorized agents needing
access to such information to administer the Plan, to perform under this Agreement, or as otherwise permitted under
this Agreement, except that United’s Financial PBI cannot be disclosed by Customer to any third party without
United’s express written consent. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 4.3 Access to Information. Other than as provided for in Section 4.4, if Customer needs United’s
Proprietary Business Information in order to administer the Plan, United will allow Customer to use United’s
Proprietary Business Information, if it is legally permissible, the information relates to United’s services under this
Agreement, and Customer gives United reasonable advance notice and an explanation of the need for such
information. Such use is subject to the terms of this Agreement.

If Customer is subject to a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) or a Texas Public Information Act (PIA) request and
the request includes United’s Proprietary Business Information, Customer will contact United prior to releasing any
information and give United the opportunity to review, respond and/or object to the FOIA/PIA request.

United will provide information only while this Agreement is in effect and for a period of twelve (12) months after
the Agreement terminates, unless Customer demonstrates that the information is required by law or for Plan
administration purposes.

United also will provide reasonable access to information to an entity providing Plan administrative services to
Customer, such as a consultant or vendor, if Customer requests it. Before United provides PHI to that entity, the
parties must sign a mutually agreed-upon confidentiality agreement, and the parties must agree as to what
information is minimally necessary to accomplish the Plan administrative service.

Section 4.4 Audits. During the term of the Agreement, and at any time within twelve (12) months following its
termination, a mutually agreeable entity may audit United once each calendar year to determine whether United is
fulfilling the terms of this Agreement. Prior to the commencement of this audit, United must receive a signed,
mutually agreeable confidentiality agreement.

4

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Without limiting the foregoing, with respect to audits regarding the payment of Rebates by pharmaceutical
manufacturers, the audit must be conducted solely by a “big four” public accounting firm that maintains a separate
and stand-alone audit department and is not providing support in conjunction with any litigation pending against
United or its affiliates. However, if no “big four” public accounting firm is qualified to perform the audit due to the
above requirements, another mutually agreeable firm meeting such requirements may be used.

Customer must advise United in writing of its intent to audit. The place, time, type, duration, and frequency of all
audits must be reasonable and agreed to by United. All audits will be limited to information relating to the calendar
year in which the audit is conducted, and/or the immediately preceding calendar year. With respect to United’s
transaction processing services, the audit scope and methodology will be consistent with generally acceptable
auditing standards, including a statistically valid random sample or other acceptable audit technique as approved by
United (“Scope”).

Customer will pay any expenses that it incurs in connection with the audit. In addition, Customer will be charged a
reasonable per claim charge and a $1,000 charge per day for audits outside of the following parameters: (1) more
than one audit per calendar year; (2) any on-site audit visit that is not completed within five (5) business days; (3)
sample sizes exceeding the Scope specified above; or (4) any audit initiated after this Agreement has terminated.
The additional fees cover the additional resources, facility fees, and other incremental costs associated with an audit
that exceeds the Scope.

In addition to Customer’s expenses and any applicable fees, Customer will also pay any extraordinary expenses
United incurs in connection with the audit. For any audit initiated after this Agreement is terminated, Customer will
pay all expenses incurred by United.

Customer will provide United with a copy of any audit reports within thirty (30) days after Customer receives the
audit report(s) from the auditor.

Section 4.5 Service Auditor Reports. United may make its Type II service auditor report (“Report”) available to
United’s self-funded customers each year for Customer’s review in connection with Plan administrative purposes
only. The Report will be issued under the guidance of Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements #16
(SSAE16). Should new guidelines covering service auditor reports be issued, United may make the equivalent of, or
any successor to, the SSAE16 Type 11 Report available to United’s self-funded customers. The Report is United’s
Proprietary Business Information and shall not be shared with any third parties without United’s prior written
approval; provided, however, that Customer can share the Report with: (i) Customet’s independent public
accounting firm; and/or (ii) Customer’s consultants, provided that such consultants are not in any way a competitor
of United’s and that Customer informs its consultants that the report was not prepared for their use. To the extent
that Customer does provide the Report to its independent public accounting firm or a consultant as permitted herein,
Customer shall require that they retain the Report as confidential and that they not disclose such Report to any other
persons or entities.

Section 4.6 PHL The parties' obligations with respect to the use and disclosure of PHI are outlined in the Business
Associate Addendum attached to this Agreement.

Section 5 — Taxes and Assessments

Section 5.1 Payment of Taxes and Expenses. In the event that any Taxes are assessed against United as a claim
administrator in connection with United’s services under this Agreement, including all topics identified in Section
5.3 Customer will reimburse United through the Bank Account for Customer’s proportionate share of such Taxes
(but not Taxes on United’s net income). United has the authority and discretion to reasonably determine whether any
such Tax should be paid or disputed. Customer will also reimburse United for a proportionate share of any cost or
expense reasonably incurred by United in disputing such Tax, including costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and any
interest, fines, or penalties relating to such Tax, unless caused by United’s unreasonable delay or unreasonable
determination to dispute such Tax.

Section 5.2 Tax Reporting. In the event that the reimbursement of any benefits to Participants in connection with
this Agreement is subject to Plan or employer based tax reporting requirements, Customer agrees to comply with
these requirements.

5

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Section 5.3 State and Federal Surcharges, Fees and Assessments. The Plan is responsible for state or Federal
surcharges, assessments, or similar Taxes imposed by governmental entities or agencies on the Plan or United,
including, but not limited to, those imposed pursuant to The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010
(“PPACA”), as amended from time to time. This includes the funding, remittance and determination of the amount
due for PPACA required taxes and fees.

Section 6 — Indemnification

Section 6.1 Customer Indemnifies United. To the extend authorized under Texas law Customer will indemnify
United and hold United harmless against any and all losses, liabilities, penalties, fines, costs, damages, and
expenses, United incurs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, which arise out of (i) Customer or its vendors’,
subcontractors’ or authorized agents’ gross negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of Customer or its
vendors’, subcontractors’ or authorized agents’ obligations under this Agreement or any other agreements entered
into with such third parties on Customer’s behalf (ii) Customer’s material breach of this Agreement (iii) a breach of
any other agreements United enters into with such third parties on Customer’s behalf, all as determined by a court or
other tribunal having jurisdiction of the matter (iv) third party claims brought against United as the claims
administrator (e.g. a claim raised by the federal government based on the federal Medicare Secondary Payor laws).
This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 6.2 United Indemnifies Customer, United will indemnify Customer and hold Customer harmless against
any and all losses, liabilities, penalties, fines, costs, damages, and expenses, that Customer incurs, including
reasonable attorneys' fees, which arise out of (i) United or its vendors’, subcontractors’ or authorized agents’ gross
negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of United or its vendors’, subcontractors’ or authorized agents’
obligations under this Agreement or (ii) United’s material breach of this Agreement, all as determined by a court or
other tribunal having jurisdiction of the matter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer will remain responsible for
payment of benefits and United’s indemnification will not extend to indemnification of Customer or the Plan against
any claims, liabilities, damages, judgments or expenses that constitute payment of Plan benefits. This provision
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 7 — Plan Benefits Litigation

Section 7.1 Litigation Against United. If a demand is asserted, or litigation or administrative proceedings are
begun by a Participant or healthcare provider against United to recover Plan benefits related to its duties under this
Agreement (“Plan Benefits Litigation™), United will select and retain defense counsel to represent its interest.

Section 7.2 Litigation Against Customer, If Plan Benefits Litigation is begun against Customer and/or the Plan,
Customer will select and retain counsel to represent its interest.

Section 7.3 Litigation Against United and Customer. If Plan Benefits Litigation is begun against the Plan and
United jointly, and provided no conflict of interest arises between the parties, the parties may agree to joint defense
counsel, If the parties do not agree to joint defense counsel, then each party will select and retain separate defense
counsel to represent their own interests.

Section 7.4 Litigation Fees and Costs. All reasonable legal fees and costs United incurs will be paid by Customer
(except as provided in Sections 3.3 and 6) if United gives Customer reasonable advance notice of United’s intent to
charge Customer for such fees and costs, and United consults with Customer in a manner consistent with United’s
fiduciary obligations on United’s litigation strategy.

Section 7.5 Litigation Cooperation. Both parties will cooperate fully with each other in the defense of Plan
Benefits Litigation.

Section 7.6 Payment of Plan Benefits. In all events, Customer is responsible for the full amount of any Plan
benefits paid as a result of Plan Benefits Litigation.

Section 7.7 Survival. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Section 8 — Mediation

Except in the case of United’s termination due to Customer’s failure to provide funds for benefits or fees, in the
event that any dispute, claim, or controversy of any kind or nature relating to this Agreement arises between the
parties, the parties agree to meet and make a good faith effort to resolve the dispute. If the dispute is not resolved
within thirty (30) days after the parties first met to discuss it, and either party wishes to pursue the dispute further,
that party will refer the dispute to non-binding mediation under the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American
Arbitration Association (“AAA”). In no event may the mediation be initiated more than one year after the date one
party first gave written notification of the dispute to the other party. A single mediator engaged in the practice of
law, who is knowledgeable about employee benefit plan administration, will conduct the mediation under the then
current rules of the AAA. The mediation will be held in a mutually agreeable site. Nothing herein is intended to
prevent either party from seeking any other remedy available at law including seeking redress in a court of
competent jurisdiction. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 9 — Termination

Section 9.1 Services End. United’s services under this Agreement stop on the date this Agreement terminates,
regardless of the date that claims are incurred. However, United may agree to continue providing certain services
beyond the termination date, as provided in Exhibit A — Statement of Work.

Section 9.2 Termination Events. This Agreement will terminate under the following circumstances: (i) The Plan
terminates, (ii) Both parties agree in writing to terminate the Agreement, (iii) After the initial Term, either party
gives the other party at least sixty (60) days prior written notice, (iv) United gives Customer notice of termination
because Customer did not pay the fees or other amounts Customer owed United when due under the terms of this
Agreement, (v) United gives Customer notice of termination if Customer fails to provide the required funds for
payment of benefits under the terms of this Agreement, (vi) Either party is in material breach of this Agreement,
other than by non-payment or late payment of fees owed by Customer or the funding of Plan benefits, and does not
correct the breach within thirty (30) days after being notified in writing by the other party, (vii) United may
terminate this Agreement in the event of a filing by or against the Customer of a petition for relief under the Federal
Bankruptcy Code, (viii) Any state or other jurisdiction prohibits a party from administering the Plan under the terms
of this Agreement, or imposes a penalty on the Plan or United and such penalty is based on the administrative
services specified in this Agreement. In this situation, the party may immediately discontinue the Agreement’s
application in such state or jurisdiction. Notice must be given to the other party when reasonably practical. The
Agreement will continue to apply in all other states or jurisdictions, or (ix) As otherwise specified in this
Agreement.

Section 10 - Miscellaneous

Section 10.1 Subcontractors. United can use its affiliates or subcontractors to perform United’s services under this
Agreement. United will be responsible for those services to the same extent that United would have been had it
performed those services without the use of an affiliate or subcontractor.

Section 10.2 Assignment. Except as provided in this paragraph, neither party can assign this Agreement or any
rights or obligations under this Agreement to anyone without the other party's written consent. That consent will not
be unreasonably withheld. Nevertheless, United can assign this Agreement, including all of its rights and
obligations to United’s affiliates, to an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with United, or a
purchaser of all or substantially all of United’s assets, subject to notice to Customer of the assighment.

Section 10.3 Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by the applicable laws of the State of Texas. The venue
of this contract shall be Williamson County, Texas. This provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Section 10.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, with its exhibits, Williamson County Request for Proposal RFP#
1702-144 and United’s response, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties governing the subject matter
of this Agreement, in the order of precedence identified below. This Agreement replaces any prior written or oral
communications or agreements between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. The headings
and titles within this Agreement are for convenience only and are not part of the Agreement.

7

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



The Agreement documents shall include the following, in order of precedence:
1. This Agreement for Administrative Services, including:

Exhibit A — Statement of Work

Exhibit B — Service Fees

Exhibit C — Performance Guarantees

Exhibit D — Business Associate Agreement

2. Attachment A — United’s Response to Williamson County Request for Proposal RFP# 1702-144 including
BAFO

3. Attachment B — Williamson County Request for Proposal RFP# 1702-144

Section 10.5 Amendment. Except as may otherwise be specified in this Agreement, the Agreement may be
amended only by both parties agreeing to the amendment in writing, executed by a duly authorized person of each
party.

Section 10.6 Waiver/Estoppel. Nothing in this Agreement is considered to be waived by any party, unless the party
claiming the waiver receives the waiver in writing. No breach of the Agreement is considered to be waived unless
the non-breaching party waives it in writing, A waiver of one provision does not constitute a waiver of any other. A
failure of either party to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement, or to exercise any option which
is herein provided in this Agreement, will in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provision of this
Agreement.

Section 10.7 Notices. Any notices, demands, or other communications required under this Agreement will be in
writing and may be provided via electronic means or by United States Postal Service by certified or registered mail,
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or delivered by a service that provides written receipt of delivery.

Section 10.8 Use of Name. The parties agree not to use each other's name, logo, service marks, trademarks or other
identifying information without the written permission of the other; provided, however, Customer grants United
permission to use Customer’s name, logo, service marks, trademarks or other identifying information to the extent
necessary for United to carry out its obligations under this Agreement (e.g. on SPDs and ID cards).

Section 10.9 Compliance with Laws and Regulations. The parties agree to comply with all applicable federal,
state and other laws and regulations with respect to this Agreement.

Section 10.10 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon any person other than
the parties and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever.

Section 10.11 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement will not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provision. However, it is intended that a court of competent jurisdiction
construe any invalid or unenforceable provision of this Agreement by limiting or reducing it so as to be valid or
enforceable to the extent compatible with applicable law.

Section 10.12 No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity of Powers. Nothing in this agreement will be deemed to
constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity of powers of Williamson County, the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, or the Williamson County Judge.

8

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



EXHIBIT A - STATEMENT OF WORK

The following are the administrative services United has agreed to provide to Customer. Customer may request that
United provide services in addition to those set forth in this Agreement. If United agrees to provide them, those
services will be governed by the terms of this Agreement and any amendments to this Agreement. Customer will
pay an additional fee, determined by United, for these additional services. The Services described in this Exhibit
will be made available to Customer’s eligible Participants consistent with the Summary Plan Description under
which the Participant is covered.

Section A1 Network

Network Access, Management and Administration. United will provide access to Networks and Network
Providers, as well as related administrative services including physician (and other health care professional)
relations, clinical profiling, contracting and credentialing, and network analysis and system development. The make-
up of the Network can change at any time. Notice will be given in advance or as soon as reasonably possible.

United generally does not employ Network Providers and they are not United’s agents or partners, although certain
Network Providers are affiliated with United. Otherwise, Network Providers participate in Networks only as
independent contractors. Network Providers and the Participants are solely responsible for any health care services
rendered to Participants. United is not responsible for the medical outcomes or the quality or competence of any
provider or facility rendering services, including Network Pharmacies and services provided through United’s
affiliates’ networks, or the payment for services rendered by the provider or facility.

Value Based Contracting Program. United’s contracts with some Network Providers may include withholds,
incentives, and/or additional payments that may be earned, conditioned on meeting standards relating to utilization,
quality of care, efficiency measures, compliance with United’s other policies or initiatives, or other clinical
integration or practice transformation standards. Customer shall fund these payments due the Network Providers as
soon as United makes the determination the Network Provider is entitled to receive the payment under the Network
Provider's contract, either upfront or after the standard has been met. For upfront funding, if United makes the
determination that the Network Provider failed to meet a standard, United will return to Customer the applicable
amount. United shall provide Customer reports describing the amount of payments made on behalf of Customer’s
Plan.

Only the initial claims based reimbursement to Network Providers will be subject to the Participant’s copayment,
coinsurance or deductible requirements, Customer will pay the Network Provider the full amount earned or
attributable to its Participants, without a reduction for copayments or deductibles and agree that there will be no
impact from these payments on the calculation of the Participant’s satisfaction of their annual deductible amount.

Section A2 Recovery Services

Claim Recoveries. United will provide recovery services for Overpayments, but United will not be responsible for
recovery costs except as otherwise stated in this section. United will be responsible for recovery costs and
reimbursement of any unrecovered Overpayment only to the extent the Overpayment was due to United’s gross
negligence.

In some instances, United may be able to obtain Overpayment recoveries by applying (or offsetting) the
Overpayment against future payments to the provider made by United. In effectuating Overpayment recoveries
through offset, United will follow its established Overpayment recovery rules which include, among other things,
the prioritization of Overpayment credits based on the age of the Overpayment in United’s system and funding type.
In United’s application of Overpayment recovery through offset, timing differences may arise in the processing of
claims payments, disbursement of provider checks, and the recovery of Overpayments. As a result, the Plan may in
some instances receive the benefit of an Overpayment recovery before United actually receives the funds from the
provider. Conversely, United may receive the funds before the Plan receives the credit for the Overpayment. It is
hereby understood that the parties may retain any interest that accrues as a result of these timing differences. Details

9

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



associated with Overpayment recoveries made through offset will be identified in the monthly reconciliation report
provided to the designated representative for Customer’s Plan.

Subrogation. United will also provide services to recover Plan benefits that were paid and are recoverable by the
Plan because payment was or should have been made by a third party for the same medical expense (other than in
connection with coordination of benefits, Medicare, or other Overpayments). This is referred to as “Third Party
Liability Recovery” (or “subrogation”).Customer will not engage any entity except United to provide the services
described herein without United’s prior approval.

Recovery Fees. Customer will be charged fees when any of the services described herein are provided by United
through a subcontractor or affiliate. The fees are deducted from the actual recoveries. Customer will be credited with
the net amount of the recovery.

Recovery Process. Customer delegates to United the discretion and authority to develop and use standards and
procedures for any recovery, including but not limited to, whether or not to seek recovery, what steps to take if
United decides to seek recovery, and the circumstances under which a claim may be compromised or settled for less
than the full amount of the claim. Customer acknowledges that use of United’s standards and procedures may not
result in full or partial recovery for any particular case. United will not pursue any recovery if it is not permitted by
any applicable law, or if recovery would be impractical. United may initiate litigation to recover payments, but
United has no obligation to do so. If United initiates litigation, Customer will cooperate with United in the litigation.

If this Agreement terminates, or, if United’s recovery services terminate, United can continue to recover any
payments United is in the process of recovering. The appropriate fees will continue to be deducted from the actual
recovery, when and if a recovery is obtained.

Fraud and Abuse Management. United or its affiliate will provide services related to the detection, prevention,
and recovery of abusive and fraudulent claims. United’s Fraud and Abuse Management processes will be based
upon United’s proprietary and confidential procedures, modes of analysis and investigations.

United will use these procedures and standards in delivering Fraud and Abuse Management services to Customer
and United’s other customers. These procedures and standards include, but are not limited to: whether or not to seek
recovery, what steps to take if United decides to seek recovery, and under what circumstances to compromise a
claim or settle for less than the full amount,

Customer delegates to United the discretion and authority to use such procedures and standards, including the
authority to undertake actions, including legal actions, which have the largest impact for the largest number of
customers. Customer acknowledges that the use of these procedures and standards may not result in full or partial
recovery or in full recovery for any particular case. United does not guarantee or warranty any particular level of
prevention, detection, or recovery. United agrees to perform Fraud and Abuse Management services pursuant to the
industry standards for such services. If this Agreement terminates, or if United’s claim recovery services terminate,
United can elect to continue fraud and abuse recoveries that are in progress, and the fees will continue to apply.

Services include all work to identify recovery opportunities, research, conduct data analysis, investigate, negotiate
settlements without the use of outside counsel, and draft legal documents. If outside counsel is retained for a group
of payers seeking the recovery, a proportionate amount of the outside legal fees, equal to the payer’s exposure in the
case to the total exposure in the case, will be deducted from the gross recovery amount, after the fee has been
deducted. Customer will be given the option to participate or decline participation in the settlement.

Section A3 Providing Funds

Responsibility for Payment of Plan Benefits. The Plan is Self-Funded. Customer is solely responsible for
providing funds for payment for all Plan benefits except when Customer is recognized as both the provider of
covered services and the payee and check suppression services apply.

Bank Account. United, on Customer's behalf, will open and maintain a Bank Account at the Bank under United’s
sole control (“Bank”) to provide United the means to access Customer's funds for the purpose of payment of Plan
benefits, Plan expenses (such as state surcharges or assessments), or other Customer financial obligations and, when
authorized by Customer, fees. The Bank Account will be a part of the network of accounts that have been
established at the Bank for United’s self-funded customers. The funds in the Bank Account are Customer's and will
not be comingled with any other customer funds.

10
Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Balance In Account, Customer shall not be required to maintain a minimum balance in the Bank Account.

The allowance not to maintain a minimum balance is based on Customer maintaining compliance with the material
financial obligations specified in this Agreement. In the event United determines, based on reasonable information
and belief, that Customer continues to fail to comply with the material financial obligations specified in this
Agreement, United may require Customer to maintain a minimum balance effective five (5) days from the date of
notice to Customer.

Issuing and Providing Funds for Checks and Non-Draft Payments. Checks and/or non-draft payments will be
written on and/or issued from one or more common accounts that are a part of the network of accounts maintained at
the Bank for United’s self-funded customers. When the checks for Plan benefits are presented to the Bank, the Bank
will notify United and United will direct the Bank to either reject the checks or to withdraw funds from the Bank
Account to fund the checks that are cashed.

Transfers of Funds. Funds will also be withdrawn from the Bank Account when a transfer of funds has been made
electronically, United will direct the Bank to withdraw funds from the Bank Account to fund the non-draft
payments or expenses as they are issued.

Calls for Funds. The withdrawals from the Bank Account are paid for by the balance Customer maintains in the
Bank Account. This balance will be drawn down each banking day to satisfy the previous day’s liability.

Every business day, United will notify Customer of the funding amounts that are due by providing a funding
notification and an associated detail report to Customer, via electronic mail, by 9:30 am CST/10:30 am EST. The
daily funding notification shall reflect the aggregated claims charges that United has processed and has paid
electronically, or if paid by check has cleared through United’s omnibus check writing bank account for payment for
the prior daily Bank days’ period ending on the prior business day. The detail report identifies the payments by
structure.

If United does not provide the dailly funding notification to Customer by 9:30 am CST in accordance with this
Section, Customer shall not be required to fund the amount of the funding notification due until the following
business day.

If the day that the funding notice is provided pursuant to this Section is a Bank holiday (where the Bank is closed),
United shall provide the daily funding notification on the immediately preceding business day that is not a Bank
holiday.

If the day that the funding notice is provided pursuant to this Section is a County Holiday or Staff Development day
United shall provide the daily funding notification and the County will process the payment funding on the next
business day.

Upon notice to Customer of the amount due, Customer will fund the designated amount(s) within one business days
via wire transfer to the designated Bank Account for payment of Plan benefits. Customer will initiate the fund
transfers unless United determines that Customer fails to comply with the material funding and financial obligations
specified in this Agreement. If such a condition occurs, Customer agrees to authorize United to initiate the transfers.
The number of days between transfers and the method of transfer are based Customer's compliance with material
financial obligations. United reserves the right to increase the frequency of such fund transfers and/or change the
method of transfer if United determines, based on reasonable information and belief, that Customer continues to fail
to comply with the material financial obligations specified in this Agreement.

Underfunding. If Customer does not provide the amounts sufficient to maintain the required minimum balance in
the Bank Account, or to cover Bank Account withdrawals: (1) Customer must immediately correct the deficiency
and provide prompt notice to United. (2) If United learns of the funding deficiency, United will notify Customer
within one business day so Customer can correct the deficiency. (3) United may stop issuing checks and non-draft
payments and suspend any of its other services under this Agreement for the period of time Customer does not
provide the required funding. (4) If Customer does not correct the funding deficiency within three banking days of
United’s notice to Customer, United may terminate this Agreement as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, such
termination to be effective the first day such funding deficiency began. Customer will pay interest on the amount of
underfunding in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2251.

11

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Stop Payments on Outstanding Checks. At Customer's expense, United may place stop payments on checks if
United determines that Customer has insufficient funds in its own designated funding bank account to honor such
checks. United will send a search letter to the payee on all checks that have not been cashed within six (6) months,
United will automatically stop payment on all checks that have not been cashed within twelve (12) months and
provide Customer with reports Customer needs for the purposes of performing escheat. Customer is solely
responsible for determining to file and/or filing unclaimed property once notified, or for making unclaimed payee
payments directly.

Funding After Termination. When this Agreement terminates, the funding method will remain in place for the
length of the run-out period. After the run-out period has ended, that funding method will cease and Customer will
deposit and maintain in the Bank Account sufficient funds to cover all checks for Plan benefits that have been issued
but not cashed. This balance will remain in the Bank Account for a limited period of time to fund the outstanding
checks and other funding obligations. This period will be reasonable, as determined by United. United will stop
payment on all checks that remain uncashed at the end of this period and Customer will request in writing to close
the Bank Account and recover any funds remaining in it. United will provide bank statements and Bank Account
reconciliation reports, including reports Customer needs for the purposes of performing escheat.

Section A4 Medical Benefit Drug Rebate Payments

Allocation and Payment of Rebates. From time to time, United or a subcontractor may negotiate with drug
manufacturers regarding the payment of medical benefit Rebates on applicable prescription drug products dispensed
to Participants under the Plan's medical benefit. Customer will receive 80% of the medical benefit Rebates United
receives. United will retain the balance of such medical benefit Rebates as part of United’s compensation, When
United negotiates directly with drug manufacturers for the payment of medical benefit Rebates to United, United
will pay Customer the agreed upon Rebates within thirty (30) calendar days of United’s receipt of such Rebates
from the drug manufacturer. If United is not able to make payment to Customer within thirty (30) calendar days,
United will pay interest on such Rebates from the date of receipt until United makes payment to Customer, less
approximately thirty (30) days for processing. United will retain interest earned during this processing timeframe.
United will pay medical benefit Rebates to Customer in the agreed upon amount no less than annually. Interest will
be paid at the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) in effect on the first business day of each
applicable month.

Customer will only receive Customer’s medical benefit Rebates to the extent that medical benefit Rebates are
actually received by United. Thus, for example, if a government action or a major change in pharmaceutical industry
practices prevents United from receiving medical benefit Rebates, the amount Customer receives may be reduced or
eliminated.

Customer agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither Customer nor the Plan will negotiate or arrange or
contract in any way for medical benefit Rebates on or the purchase of prescription drug products from any
manufacturer under the Plan's medical benefit. If Customer or the Plan does, United may, without limiting United’s
right to other remedies, immediately terminate Customer’s and Plan's entitlement to medical benefit Rebates
(including forfeiture of any medical benefit Rebates earned but not paid). In addition, Customer agrees to reasonably
cooperate with United in order to obtain medical benefit Rebates.

Subcontractor Compensation. If a subcontractor is involved in negotiating with drug manufacturers regarding the
payment of medical benefit Rebates, it may retain a portion of the gross amounts received from drug manufacturers
in connection with such products.  United will provide information on the amount, if any, retained by the
subcontractor as compensation for its services, in advance of Customer’s execution of this Agreement. In addition,
United will provide Customer with thirty (30) days advance notice of any material increase in or method for
subcontractor compensation. If at any time Customer does not find the subcontractor compensation acceptable,
Customer may terminate the medical benefit Rebates services after thirty (30) days advance written notice to United.

12
Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Section A5 Claims Determinations and Appeals

Claim Procedures. Customer appoints United a named fiduciary under the Plan with respect to (i) performing
initial benefit determinations and payment, and (ii) performing the fair and impartial review of first level internal
appeals and (iii) performing the fair and impartial review of second level internal appeals. As such, Customer
delegates to United the discretionary authority to (i) construe and interpret the terms of the Plan, (ii) to determine the
validity of charges submitted to United under the Plan, and (iii} make final, binding determinations concerning the
availability of Plan benefits under the Plan’s internal appeal process, all in compliance with applicable law and
regulation. If United denies a Plan benefit claim, in whole or in part, United will notify the claimant of the adverse
benefit determination and the claimant shall have the appeal rights set forth in the Summary Plan Description, and/or
those which are required under applicable law. If after the exhaustion of the two levels of internal appeal, United
determines that the Plan benefit is still not payable, United will notify the claimant that the adverse benefit
determination has been upheld. This determination will be final and binding on the claimant, and all other interested
parties, except as otherwise provided under the external review program described in this Section.

Appeals of Urgent Care Claims. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to Urgent Care Claims, United will
conduct one review of a denied Urgent Care Claim and issue a final determination as soon as possible, in accordance
with applicable law.

External Review Program. United will notify claimants of the option to request an external review of adverse
benefit determinations following the required internal appeal process. United will, in accordance with applicable
law: (i) provide claimant with the necessary procedures to obtain the review (ii) coordinate submission of the
claimant’s case to an independent review organization, and (iii) direct the independent review organization to notify
the claimant of the final external review decision. A fee will apply beyond the maximum number of free reviews, as
listed in Exhibit B, Fees.

Section A6 Systems Access

Access. United grants Customer the nonexclusive, nontransferable right to access and use the functionalities
contained within the Systems, under the terms specified in this Agreement. Customer agrees that all rights, title, and
interest in the Systems and all rights in patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets encompassed in the
Systems will remain United’s. To obtain access to the Systems, Customer will obtain, and be responsible for
maintaining, at no expense to United, the hardware, software, and Internet browser requirements United provides to
Customer, including any amendments thereto. Customer will be responsible for obtaining an Internet Service
Provider or other access to the Internet. Customer will not (i) access Systems or use, copy, reproduce, modify, or
excerpt any Systems documentation provided by United in order to access or utilize Systems, for purposes other
than as expressly permitted under this Agreement or (ii) share, transfer or lease Customer’s right to access and use
Systems, to any other person or entity which is not a party to this Agreement. Customer may designate any third
party, with prior approval from United, to access Systems on Customer’s behalf, provided the third party agrees to
these terms and conditions of Systems access and Customer assumes joint responsibility for such access.

Security Procedures. Customer will use commercially reasonable physical and software-based measures to protect
the passwords and user 1Ds provided by United for access to and use of any web site provided in connection with the
services. Customer shall use commercially reasonable anti-virus software, intrusion detection and prevention
system, secure file transfer and connectivity protocols to protect any email and confidential communications
provided to United, and maintain appropriate logs and monitoring of system activity, Customer shall notify United
within a reasonable timeframe of any (a) unauthorized access or damage, including damage caused by computer
viruses resulting from direct access connection, and (b) misuse and/or unauthorized disclosure of passwords and
user IDs provided by United which impact the System.

Termination. United reserves the right to terminate Customer’s System access (i) on the date Customer fails to
accept the hardware, software and browser requirements provided by United, including any amendments thereto or
(i) immediately on the date United reasonably determines that Customer has (i) breached, or allowed a breach of,
any applicable provision of this Section or (i) materially breached or allowed a material breach of, any other
applicable provision of this Agreement. Customer’s System Access will also terminate upon termination of this
Agreement, provided however that if run-out is provided in accordance with Exhibit A - Services, Customer may
continue to access applicable functionalities within the Systems during the run-out period. Upon any of the

13
Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



termination events described in this Agreement, Customer agrees to cease all use of Systems, and United will
deactivate Customer’s identification numbers, passwords, and access to the System.

Section A7 Pharmacy Benefit Services

Pharmacy Network, United or its affiliate will provide the Pharmacy Benefit Services described in this Section.
United will make Network Pharmacies available to Customer Participants, through United’s affiliate. United will
determine which pharmacies are Network Pharmacies. Network Pharmacies can change at any time. United will
make a reasonable effort to provide Customer with advance notice if any material changes occur to the network.
Upon request, United will provide Customer information on the reimbursement rate to United’s affiliated Network
Pharmacies.

Mail Order Pharmacy Services. United will provide, through its affiliate, mail order pharmacy services for
Customer’s Participants. Customer's pricing terms for mail order pharmacy services are based on the actual package
dispensed and at least a 46 day supply. Prescriptions filled through the mail order pharmacy that are less than a 46
day supply will be processed at retail pricing and will be counted with retail utilization.

Prescription Drug List (PDL). Customer has adopted one or more of United’s PDLs for use with Customer’s
benefit plans. Customer agrees not to copy, distribute, sell, or otherwise provide the PDL to another party without
United’s prior written approval, except to Participants as described below. On termination of this Agreement or if
Customer terminates the Pharmacy Benefit Services portion of this Agreement, Customer will stop all use of the
PDL.

While Customer is the ultimate decision-maker on selecting the design of Customer’s PDL(s), Customer has
requested that United supply and assist Customer with, certain PDL development and management functions
including but not limited to drug tiering decisions. United’s intent is to provide Customer with the same PDL and
management strategies that United develops and employs in the management of United’s fully insured business.

United makes the final classification of an FDA-approved prescription drug product to a certain tier of the PDL by
considering a number of factors including, but not limited to, clinical and economic factors. Clinical factors may
include, but are not limited to, evaluations of the place in therapy, relative safety or relative efficacy of the
prescription drug product, as well as whether supply limits or notification requirements should apply. Economic
factors may include, but are not limited to, the prescription drug product's acquisition cost including, but not limited
to, available Rebates, and assessments on the cost effectiveness of the prescription drug product.

United may periodically down-tier the placement of a prescription drug product among the tiers. These changes
may occur without prior notice. Once a year, United may also up-tier the placement of a prescription drug product
among the tiers and/or recommend specific prescription drug product exclusions from coverage. United will
provide notice to Customer of material changes to the PDL, United’s drug tier classification procedures, coverage
exclusions, and clinical programs. If Customer chooses not to implement a particular coverage exclusion or clinical
program change, Customer needs to inform United in writing sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the
exclusion or change. Current drug placement and related information may be obtained from the website, or by
calling customer service.

Claims Processing. United will process the claims received from a Network Pharmacy in accordance with the
Summary Plan Description, as well as the pricing and other terms of the Network Pharmacy’s participation
agreement. On mail order and retail pharmacy services, United will retain the difference between what we
reimburse the Network Pharmacy and Customer payment for a prescription drug product or service.

United maintains systems for processing pharmacy claims and may receive access fees as compensation for services
United provides to Network Pharmacies.

14

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Section A8 Pharmacy Benefit Rebates

Allocation and Payment of Rebates. United will negotiate with drug manufacturers for the payment of Rebates to
United. The amount of Rebates that is available depends on many factors including whether Customer has an
incentive benefit design, arrangements with drug manufacturers, the volume of prescription drug claims and the
structure of the PDL. United will pay Customer an amount equal to 100% of the Rebates United receives (and
United may pay interest on this amount as described in this Section). Customer agrees that all payments associated
with Rebates and any related interest are not due and owing to Customer until United actually pays them to
Customer pursuant to this Agreement.

Customer will only receive Rebates to the extent that Rebates are actually received by United. For example, if a
government action or a major change in pharmaceutical industry practices eliminates or materially reduces
manufacturer Rebate programs, Customer’s payment amount may be reduced or eliminated. In such event, United
shall promptly notify Customer and revise or eliminate such payment effective with the date of the reduction or
elimination in Rebate payments. In addition, reduction or elimination of Rebates in this event shall constitute a
change in the Agreement as described in the Fees Section such that United has the right to increase the fees for the
Pharmacy Benefits Management services or increase the percentage of Rebate dollars retained by United.

United will pay Customer the agreed upon Rebates within thirty (30) calendar days of United’s receipt of such
Rebates, generally four times per year. For any Rebates not paid to Customer within thirty (30) calendar days of
United’s receipt, United will pay Customer interest on such Rebates from the date of receipt until United makes
payment to Customer, less approximately thirty (30) days for processing. United will retain interest earned during
this processing timeframe. United will pay Rebates to Customer in the agreed upon amount no less than annually.
Interest will be paid at the one month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) in effect on the first business day of
each applicable month.

Payments to Pharmacies. In connection with prescription drug claims, there may be a timing difference between
when United withdraw funds from Customer claims account and when United issues payments to pharmacies and
other payees. United may retain interest earned on these amounts during this time. Interest is expected to be paid at
overnight deposit rates by United’s banking institution.

Customer Compliance. Customer agrees that during the term of this Agreement, neither Customer nor the Plan will
negotiate or arrange or contract in any way for Rebates on or the purchase of prescription drug products from any
manufacturer with respect to the pharmacy benefits. If you or the Plan does, United may, without limiting United’s
right to other remedies, immediately terminate Customer and Plan's entitlement to Rebates (including forfeiture of
any Rebates earned but not paid) and/or terminate the pharmacy benefit services. Termination of pharmacy benefit
services shall constitute a change in the Agreement as described in the Fees Section such that United has the right to
increase the fees for medical management services under this Agreement. In addition, Customer agrees to
reasonably cooperate with United in order to obtain Rebates. Customer will encourage Customer Participants to use
a Network Pharmacy. Customer will also encourage Customer Participants to electronically access the PDL on
United’s website, and encourage Participants to share the PDL with their physicians or refer their physicians to the
PDL on United’s website.

Schedule of Services

A, ACCOUNT MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Service ; Comments
Implementation and maintenance of account, | -
Enrollment meetings and support for locations that meet Minimum six weeks notice of meetmg

United’s criteri
_Standard initi

Bulk mailing of initial enrollment kits to Customer based
on United’s criteria,

O ngo l ng accou ntmﬂ n age i ent i nc] ud I ng_ S
+  Designated account resources.

+  Ongoing management and review of benefits and data.

15

Proprictary Information of UnitedHealth Group




Service Comments
Standard accounting structure based on United’s criteria:
«  Suffixes to accommodate separate claims reporting for
different benefit plans.
«  Claim accounts to accommodate separate claims data for

provides capabilities to:

+  View invoices online.

+  Sort and search enrollee information.
«  Download billing information.

Online administration services accessed through United’s | Customer reporting is included to the extent indicated in
Employer eServices Web site including online eligibility Section D. eServices Customer Reporting Services.
.Imaintenance and claim status inquiry. . .
Summary Plan Description (SPD) Assistance. United will | If the SPD is not finalized sufficiently in advance of the
prepare a customized draft of an SPD, either for each plan or | Effective Date of United’s services, United will either (i)
multiple plans, as mutually agreed upon with one additional | utilize the summary of Plan benefits and exclusions that United
draft, in response to Customer's comments, and a final draft | has created based on its understanding of Customer’s Plan
SPD. “Plan”, for purposes of this paragraph, means each | design and which Customer has reviewed and approved or (ii)
individual plan design administered by United. The SPD will | create, at United’s discretion, an operational SPD which will be
be in English. | based upon the summary of Plan benefits that Customer has
| reviewed and approved. United will administer claims and
otherwise provide its services in accordance with this summary
| of Plan benefits and exclusions or operational SPD, as the case
may be, and it will govern and remain in full force and effect
until a final SPD is provided to United.

=
=2
=
S
o
o
=
wn
=
v
w
=
o
<
=
=3
=
@
=4
P
£
ISy
o
o
=3
Hel
=
e
io
&
w
=

+  Electronic version in United’s standard format.
+  For medical Plans administered by United.
+ Initial request and up to 1 amendment per year.

B. ELIGIBILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Service | Comments
Standard ID Card production and issuance. United has assumed the addition of Customer’s logo in an

Electronic Enrollment processing:

- Each submission to be a single consolidated file.
Separate eligibility submissions for COBRA.

+ Initial load of primary physician data (when applicable)

16

Proprietary Information of UnitedHealth Group



Service

Comments

Submission format:

UnitedHealth Group® Standard 3005 Format; HIPAA
834 Compliant Format; or HR-XML format.

Single data source required.

Submission frequency:

Changes file daily in combination with a full population
file on a monthly schedule.

Or

.

Changes file weekly or bi-weekly in combination with a
full population file on a monthly or quarterly schedule.
Or
+  Full file weekly or bi-weekly.
Transmission method:

FFTP with United’s approved encryption or direct connect.

C.UNDERWRITING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

Service

Comments

Annual PrOJectlon of cost impact for benefit design

changes. —
Annual Projection of conventional premium equivalent
rates.

"Annual government flmgs of 1099 reports to the IRS
legaldmg payments made to physicians and other health care

Provide requlred data necessary to enable Customer to
file Form 5500.

D.ESERVICES® CUSTOMER REPORTI

NG SERVICES

Service

Comments

An online customer reporting system including up to five
_customer [Ds.
Reporting Access Levels:
Standard — Basic report package of “subscription”

|
financial and utilization information produced on a pre- ‘

scheduled basis.

Select — In addition to the Standard features, interactive
access to eCR tools allowing the user to customize report
parameters to facilitate detailed views of the data.
Includes a broad atray of membership and utilization
reports.

Expanded — In addition to the Select features, allows the
user greater ad-hoc and customizable capabilities to
_obtain detailed performance information.

.

IZ
=t
:
&
-
2
=4
’2.
)
=
(="
=
=
=
Q
=
(=
&
=
@
=3
(=}
=
(ol
w

lnterface with third party stop loss vendor.

United provides claim statistical reports, 